
 
 

NOTICE OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
September 15, 2020 

at 6:00 p.m. 
 

THE MEETING WILL BE HELD ELECTRONICALLY 
 

The City Council of the City of Pontiac will hold a Formal Meeting on September 15, 2020 at 6:00 
p.m. This meeting will be held electronically pursuant to the Open Meetings Act and Governor 
Whitmer’s Executive Order 2020-154. The agenda of the Formal Meeting  is attached. Pursuant 
to Executive Order 2020-129, the Pontiac City Council gives notice of the following: 
 

1. Reason for Electronic Meeting. The Pontiac City Council is meeting 
electronically because of Executive Order 2020-154. 

 
2. Procedures. The public may view the meeting electronically through the following 

method. 
http://pontiac.mi.us/council/pontiactv/index.php 

 
3. Public Comment. For individuals who desire to make a public comment, please 

submit your name and comment in writing to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us. 
Additionally, you may submit your public comment in writing directly to the Office 
of the City Clerk during regular business hours.  All public comments must be 
received no later than 5:30 p.m. on September 15, 2020. Public comments are 
limited to three (3) minutes. The City Clerk will read your comments during the 
public comment section of the meeting. 

 
4. Persons with Disabilities. Persons with disabilities may participate in the meeting 

through the methods set forth in paragraph 2. Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services in order to attend electronically should notify the Interim 
City Clerk, Garland Doyle at (248) 758-3200 or clerk@pontiac.mi.us at least 24 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
 
Dated 9-11-2020, 5:00 p.m. 
Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk        
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac, MI 48342 Phone: (248) 758-3200 



Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
Megan Shramski, District 2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

Website: http://pontiac.mi.us/council/meeting agendas and minutes/index.php 

FORMAL MEETING 
September 15, 2020 

6:00P.M. 
189th Session of the 10th Council 

Call to order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. September 8, 2020 

Subcommittee Report 
2. Public Safety- August 2020 

3. Real Estate- September 9, 2020 

Special Presentations (Special Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 
4. City of Pontiac Retired Employees Association (CPREA) Status Update 

Presentation Presenters: Mayor Waterman, City Attorney John Clark and Attorney Samantha Kopaz, Miller 
Canfield 

5. Introduction of Candidate for Finance Director- Darin Carrington 
Presentation Presenters: Mayor Deirdre Waterman and Darin Carrington 

6. Report following the Real Estate Subcommittee Meeting on Proposed Private Partnership
Presentation Presenters: Attorney Matt Gibb, Special Counsel and City Attorney Antony Chubb 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk 
Office of the City Clerk 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Michigan 48342 Phone (248) 758-3200 
Website: http:/ /pontiaccityclerk.com 



Recognition of Elected Officials 

Agenda Address 

Resolutions 
City Cle1'k 

7. Resolution to approve the grant agreement between the City of Pontiac and Center for Tech and Civic Life 
(CTCL). The Office of the City Clerk has received a $405,564.00 grant from CTCL to support the City of 
Pontiac Safe Voting Plan. The grant period is June 15-December 31, 2020. The grant award was presented by 
the Interim City Clerk during the City Council Meeting on September 8, 2020. 

Community Development 
8. Resolution to approve the 2020 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium Agreement between Oakland County 

and the City of Pontiac. 

Department of Public Works 
9. Resolution to extend contract with Great Lakes Power and Lighting until January 1, 2021. 

Finance 
10. Resolution to authorize the Interim City Clerk to publish a notice in a newspaper of general circulation at least 

one week before consideration of the proposed budget amendment to increase account 101-000-532.000 in the 
amount of $90,000.00. The City has received two grants for the U.S. Census from the Michigan Municipal 
League ($25,000.00) and the Community Foundation of Southeast Michigan ($65,000.00). 

Public Comment 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 

Adjournment 

Upcoming Special Presentations 

September 29, 2020 
1. Office of the City Clerk Election 2020 Initiatives 
2. Office of the City Clerk Medical Marihuana Application Review Process Monthly Update 





September 8, 2020 Study 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

188th Session of the Tenth Council 
Call to order 
A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order electronically on Tuesday, 
September 8, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Roll Call 
Members Present: Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burk~, Waterman and Williams. 
Members Absent: Carter. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Excuse Council Members 
20-414 Excuse Councilmember Randy Carter for personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
20-415 Approval of the Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

President Pro-Tern Randy Carter arrived at 6:03 p.m. 

Approval of the Minutes 
20-416 Approval of minutes for September 1, 2020. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks 
and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Public Comment 
Two (2) individuals submitted a public comment read by the City Clerk 

Discussion 
Status Update on Dream Cruise Budget Allocation 

1 



September 8, 2020 Study 

Special Presentations 
Election 2020 Update 
Presentation Presenter: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

Suspend the Rules/Resolutions 
20-417 Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 
Miller. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Shramski 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-418 Resolution to support Letter of Apology to Detroit Regional Parking Authority. 
Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac embraces a positive business environment that encourages new businesses to 
build in our community; and 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac is committed to professional integrity and sound business relationships; and 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac understands the importance of building good partnerships with the business 
community. 
Now, therefore, the City Council joins the Mayor of Pontiac by supporting the attached letter of apology 
to the Detroit Regional Convention Parking Authority. 

20-419 
Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pietila 
No: Waterman, Williams, Carter, Miller, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
Resolution Failed 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Williams, Caiier, Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

20-420 Resolution to approve contract with Ricoh to update printers in City Hall not to 
exceed $77,062.80. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Waterman. 

Whereas, City Hall utilizes eight Ricoh printers' costs approximately $1,845 per month; and 
Whereas, the current vendor can replace these printers with new printers on a lease for $1,855.24 per 
month, including maintenance; and 
Whereas, at the end of the 60-month lease the City will own the printers; 
Now Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Pontiac City Council approves the lease and maintenance of the 
new Ricoh printers at a rate of $1,858.24 per month for a period of 60 months, and authorizes the Mayor 
to execute contracts necessary to complete the transaction. 

2 



September 8, 2020 Study 

20-421 
Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams' 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Miller, Shramski, Tylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Carter 
No: Pietila 
Motion Carried 

20-422 Motion to receive communication from the Mayor regarding Tax Impact of Pontiac 
Residents and Businesses in the event of Phoenix Center Default Report. Moved by Councilperson 
Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Adjournment 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: Pietila 
Motion Carried 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 7:06 p.m. 

3 

GARLAND S DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



ITTEE 
REPORT 



Garland Do le 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Follow Up Flag: 
Flag Status: 

Mary Pietila <marypietila@gmail.com> 
Thursday, September 10, 2020 4:15 PM · 
Garland Doyle 
Megan Shramski; Randolph Carter 
Public Safety Subcommittee report, 
August MONTHLY REPORT for Pontiac Fire.pdf; August2020 DB.xlsx; 
PONTIACStarREPORTMONTHLY August 2020.xlsx 

Follow up 
Flagged 

I \VARNING: This email originated from outside of City of Pontiac. DO NOT click on any links oi·. open any 
l.attachments .. unless .. you.recognize.the.sender .. and.are .. expecting.the.1hessage ................................................................................................................. . 

Due to the Covid-19 event and the additional workloads of some depaiiments, we have chosen to submit 
reports, and not have a. m. meeting the month of September, but will meet in October on the 9th at 9:30 a.m. in 

the Lions Den .. 

The following is a nmTative fro1n Star EMS: Car seat Checks are still on hold through 
September 

WE hired 4 new B(basic)ElvlT's and put them through orientation. I should mention that all our orientations for 

the last few years have included a class on Cultural Diversity. 

WE have not purchased any new trucks due to COVID shutting down plants that are just now returning to 

production with a large backlog. 

During Conversation with Command Staff of the Oakland County 
Sheriffs Department Friday September 3, the shootings which occurred on 
Dudley and· Spring Lake Apartments, are determined to be two separate 
incidents and unrelated. 

If Council or the Administration has any other questions regarding any of the departments. Please feel free to 
contact Fire Chief Matt Covey regarding Waterford Regional Fir, Lt R. Ford at the Pontiac Substation, or Brian 
Long with Star EMS 



Sincerely, 

Mary Pietila, HHA 

Councilwoman District 3, City of Pontiac 

Phone: 248-758-3019 Cell:248-499-4622 

Fax:248-758-3164 

2 



WATERFORD REGIONAL 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

2495 Crescent Lake Road• Waterford, Ml 48329 
Phone: 248.673.0405 • Fax: 248.674.4095 

www.waterfordmi.gov 

• Matthew Covey Fire Chief• Carl Wallace Deputy Fire Chief• John Phebus Fire Marshal 

MONTHLY FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 
For the City of Pontiac 

August 2020 

Total Pontiac Fire Station calls - month: 405 Average Response Time 5.16 per call 

Total calls for Pontiac Stations - YTD: 3076 

City Calls: Fires: 25 EMS: 243 False Alarms: 30 Other: 107 

Pontiac YTD, Fires: 194 6.31% EMS: 180158.55% False Alarms: 227 7.61% Other: 854 27.76% 

Month Count Response Times month average YTD Count 

FS-6 Fires - 7 5.43 56 

EMS-51 4.44 380 

FS-7: Fires-11 5.13 74 

EMS - 97 5.26 704 

FS-8: Fires-5 5.02 32 

EMS - 48 5.10 374 

FS-9: Fires -2 4.51 22 

EMS-41 4.32 323 

Fire Injuries to personnel: O Fire Injuries to civilian: 0 
Incidents for month: 
Call volume has decrease year to date -7.03%, due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

Notable Event: 
• Additional supplies from Federal and State agency being delivered to the FD 
• Purchased Victory Sprayer for all stations used to decon vehicles and fire station 
• Entire Department conducted CPR training, Hazardous Material training and officer development training 

• Roof f ire Mclaren Oakland 



9/11 /2020 15:57 

Road Patrol/DB January February March 

Road Patrol Arrests: 369 366 333 
Traffic Citations: 786 646 508 
Detective Bureau Warrants: 83 77 99 
Cases Assigned to Detectives: 380 304 381 
Appearance Citations: 6 6 6 
DNA Swabs 0 0 0 

Domesic Violence Arrests 

I state Law Warrants: 28 21 40 

Directed Patrol Unit 

Felony Arrests: 22 19 42 
Misdemeanor Arrests in Custody: 0 1 12 
Appearance Citations: 1 1 1 
Traffic Citations: 2 0 0 
Controlled Buys: 0 0 0 
Handguns Seized: 3 1 9 
Long Guns Seized: 0 0 0 
Search Warrants Executed: 0 0 0 

Violent Crimes Statistics 

Armed Robberies 12 11 5 
Homicides: 1 0 1 
Discharged Firearm (Injuries): 3 1 1 

Oakland County Sheriff's Office 
Pontiac Substation 

2020 

April May June July August 

265 348 321 300 362 
152 243 256 281 252 
139 127 111 94 146 
327 370 410 381 464 

5 6 11 7 10 
0 0 0 0 1 

43 46 47 47 57 

75 72 44 47 40 
12 9 14 3 5 
0 2 4 2 3 
0 0 0 9 0 
0 0 0 0 0 
13 14 14 16 16 
1 0 4 2 2 
0 0 0 0 0 

10 7 7 6 10 
1 0 1 1 3 
3 1 3 3 5 

Sept October November December Totals 

2,664 
3,124 
876 

3,017 
57 
1 

361 
56 
14 
11 
0 

86 
9 
0 

68 
8 

20 



Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 PR 20 20-May 20-Jun 

48340 4.9 5 4.8 4.7 4.6 4.8 
48341 5 5 5.1 5 4.9 4.9 
48342 4.9 4.8 4.8 4.9 4.9 4.75 

Monthly 4.93 4.93 4.9 4.86 4.8 4.78 

20-Jul Aug-20 

48340 5 5.1 
48341 4.8 4.7 
48342 4.8 4.8 

Monthly 4.89 4.86 





In attendance: 

REAL ESTATE SUBCOMMITTEE NOTES 

September9,2020 

Council members: Chair President Kermit \Villiams and Patrice \Vaterman 
City Attorney: John Clark 
Attorney: Matt Gibb 

Start time: 12:30 p.m. 

AGENDA 

I. Welcome 

II. Twenty Minutes Provided for Phoenix Center Partnership/Proposals 

A. Three groups were present and presented proposals 

1. Pimpernel Developments LLC 
Provided a proposed binding letter of intent (PCSA LOI) dated September 15, 2020 

2. Omega Investments LTD and Lawrence F. Jasper II, CEO. 
Provided an Official Memorandum dated December 16, 2019 

3. A third group 
Documentation to be provided by Friday, September 11, 2020. 

• Each group is to provide a letter of credit/proof of funds guaranteeing investment before 
the Council meeting, Tuesday, September 15, 2020. 

• All documentation for each group will be given to the Council for the Tuesday, September 
15, 2020 meeting. 

• Attorney Gibb will prepare resolutions for each of the proposals, to be included in the 
Tuesday, September 15, 2020 Council Agenda. 

• Council will be able to vote on the proposals and determine whether the body would lil-:e 
to explore a proposal further and from that point, Council can determine next steps. 

• A favorable vote for a proposal will not bind either party, but will allow for further 
investigation, additional information to be provided and due diligence. 

III. Announcements 

IV. Adjournment· 
2:35 p.m. 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

<Ymega !f tWe6lnwm .etd. 

OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

City of Pontiac, Honorable Mayor, Council ~x~iJent and City Council Members 

OMEGA INVESTMENTS LTD. AND LAWR6J~timw:.~_ASPER II, CEO 
"if//J}':-· '~;;)tit~ 

December 16, 2019 ... _:;-,;:,. -·,_:_''ft 
_-_-llf~{J/?~ -. ">'t~~ ~> ... 

Emergency Resolution to acq1Jir~}bttawa Towers thr~\Jgh the formation of a 
Public Private Partnership (PP'iif'i.ln.tf erneath the Munl~l~[tmartnership Act, Act 
258 of 2011 between the City ·ai';f~911tiaf;f~\~}1 Omega lh~\-~tments Ltd. and 
acquire the rights to;J}ie. Settlementt~gr~t6{J'~t, suspendingYf\i· default of the 
City of Pontiac's fai1~¥'€Jci2.fue~tthe NoJtWiher 1, 2020 deadline. To provide and 
escrow and have Om~·g'.~h!~i•~?,i~Jhe acqJ{ft{ipri of the Ottawa Towers and to 

•.;·?::}-:·J, '··-·:/~'.\._\>,. ·:.~.\:fi;::·~-
ma nage th~repairs, refurb1s~menlsfiind techrfolqgical updates for the Phoenix 

Facili~Yf::~~ij;otl~'.¥t~. Towertn,, IL 'ni:l~fh'i:}~§{~~l~;~ mixed used development 
infrastfddure fofthe comm1.frHtyicij(led thEi'Pa'rR Place Little City franchise. 

'I<~::~.";.., "\f?~ •:.•~,\~;t;tf~' ••: .,T 

·--\:Jk:_.. i=:-.f"" 

In Phase I, th~\~ltypf Po~ifl&~gqµ:KtlJf6Jra.x1sfer $"i}o.oo,ooo (Seven Million) dollars of unassigned 
funds t9JuHBWHJl~~~ir§ in tK~is'[ttiem~~t';A;ijt,eem'~Wt for the Phoenix Parking structure entered 
by the{f¥i'~Y~r and th~··e~~n~il pfi'Jtro Novem·ifiir;'it, 2018. Those funds shall be used to sign this 
Memor1Ha4,m of Underst'~n{Ji,pg a~Bic.r~ate a Public Private Partnership (PPP} between City of 
Pontiac ancli'.(i{rRs.ga. ·\\\ti~:.. "\\t:\;s,,, 

Funds that hav;=:6:l~n,~llotted 1~{t~~ General Ledger 2020 of the City of Pontiac for the Settlement 
Agreement payout $'2}\qo,ooq1@wo Million One Hundred Thousand), and the Recreation Center, 
$ $3,200,000 (Three Mf[il9n1/rwb Hundred Thousand), totaling $5;300,000 (Five Million Three 
Hundred Thousand). The\;~;Jtfnds shall be transferred to Settlement Agreement fund and used 
for acquisition of the Ottawa Towers establishing 5 additional properties o\/erseen by this PPP 
and controlled by this Memorandum of Understanding, until Partnership documents are drafted 
by Clark Hill. 

Omega shall acquire the Ottawa Towers for $20,000,000 (Twenty Million) dollars as stipulated by 
Chuck Stevens in email sent to Council President Kermit Williams and acquire the rights for the 
Settlement Agreement, suspending the November 1, 2020 deadline for completion of the repairs 

1 



for the City of Pontiac, eliminating the risk presently facing the City of Pontiac through our Publlc 
Private Partnership. Exhibit A (email from Chuck and Mike Stevens) Terms specific 

In Phase 111 Omega, and the City of Pontiac shall hold a close door session to review the full plan 
of the Public Private Partnership to create Park Place Little City development. The funding 
mechanism shall be decided that best represents the most cost effective and beneficial to the 
Partnership, The development shall become a franchise of Omega's that shall be run by· the City 
of Pontiac, as the franchisee after its completion. The City of Pontiac shall relnitiate the attorney 
fund for the Phoenix Center to create the Public Private Partnership and franchise documents, 
Clark Hill will be hired to create and provide all terms agreeJ:JJ'.t§tduring those speclal meetings. 
The City of Pontiac and Omega Investments shall sign the eeP)Acidltlonal Funds shall be allocated 
for the needed materials, educational and childcare f?.~tHWit9I,!rain the workforce and needed 
completion of Park Place Little City >, '<~~\~" '<~1:·~W,\:, 

In Phase Ill, the City of Pontiac and Omega sh,9!));(8\~;~e the terms o
1
a't}h:t~d in the Memorandum 

of Understanding and shall execute the rap ·~i~:G·pd Insurance rider oh'{~;E;l,Phoenix Center and 
Ottawa Towers to provide local small businesset:~pcj self-employed worltf&'r~~ for construction 
and operations to be hired for the ri~9essary repai?;it~.\l9'l~ilBh, and retooi'NWiiwork to operate 
the franchise, The Public Private Patt,'6~J$h!P shall give{\ftlgi'point preference foFJobs to Pontiac 
Voters registered by November 11 2029,<·1(?.\\-, ·;,\:';\ . 

. .: ..... ~s- . ·:-.;:,(,Yf~-::-:~- :<}~\~ ... 
-:·;~f\1,,;?,'., 

Omega shall refinance s,9iPJ?X:9Perties wltn:ir 2 tc?3(y~9Jr frorrf{b)'!,_date of acquisition and pay 
the City back its lnVeqtH:l:$ht?Wf:tfr:ZO% intefe§t A~ctti(&Rall*/~th.e riJw entity of title shall provide 
a 10% equity ownersH.htior the~Gi1\i\tO be spi1n1;>~fwlen th'l•~Jers of Pontiac. Furthermore) the 
City shall retain the fr~ijghi.see right~ of the Litfli\city franchise and receive a franchisee fee of 
3% from Park_ el.ace UtdJ'it1w f(~tilhtS€!,JOr the·imJx use development total gross proceeds for 

::::!jt;::::¢::~~~~~:?::;;~:~j~;~~!~::.::•c::::t :::::: t:::::~:~::e: :::~: 
Public Partnir~h!p on DecemH~f,::.,;16, 201§itAdditionally, Omega submitting on behalf of the City 
of Pontiac a su·~P.lei:nent to th~'IB.FP detailing Its benefits of the Partnership on December 17, 
2019. Furthermor.J/~f<;Wided tb:~t~ity of Pontiac with a PowerPoint presentation and Illustrations 
of the propose Park Wl~:&~Jitt1itc'fty, through the acquisition of the Ottawa Towers, connecting 
the Phoenix Parking Facillty@fj.f' 

·-,~-(,~·· 

WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac Is destine to DEFAULT settlement agreement deadline of the 
November 1, 2020. Speciflcally, Section 6.3 provides that the City undertake "all electrlcal1 

lighting, elevator and structural repairs and improvements In the north and south sections of the 
Deck to be completed within the first two years after the effective date [November 1, 2018) of 
this Agreement ... effectively causing a debt of approximately $51,000,000 (Fifty One Million). 

2 



WHEREAS, on August 17 th Chuck Stevens offered the City of Pontiac an opportunity to purchase 
the Ottawa Towers to avoid their defaulting the Settlement Agreement. The cost to the City is 
$20,000,000,00 (Twenty Million) for 5 Properties (2) eight stories office buildings and (3) schools. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac will transfer $921,627.00 (Nine Hllndred and Twenty One 
Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty Seven) dollars in escrow. The tower located at 51111 
Woodward shall sell for $12,700,000,00 with 10% down payment, the Seller would provide a land 
contract for a period of 3 years @ 7% at $35,850.00 (Thirty-Five Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Fifty) dollars per month. An extension for another 3 years @ 8% is an option. The City shall pay 
Cash for 31 Judson of $6,375,373.00 (Six Million Three Hq(lired and Seventy-Five Thousand 
Three Hundred and Seventy-Three) dollars. -i~;rJt"· 

WHEREAS, the City shall escrow the amount of $1?,:i&i~'!\a/(twelve Million Three Hundred 
Thousand) dollars for the acquisition of the Ottawif:r.Owers I & 11}'tK~Jransference of their rights 
for the Settlement Agreement to the PPP, e~_~j'Q'~}fi~ 3 remaining p1y\-n~rits of $700,000 (Seven 
Hundred Thousand) due yearly until 2022. ThMt~n<:ls shall be allocated mti$<;[OW immediately for 
initiating the PPP between Omega Investments I{W~nd the CJ.ttof Pontiac'f8-W:tne Ottawa towers, 
acquisition, after signing the Memor;:indum of undi:~itan,dJf{'g;>} ·:\$\,.. · · 

WHEREAS, $7,000,000.00 {Seven J:;rlWS~f&:ouars wasf~j,:~:ved by Council fo; the Settlement 
Agreement. Additionally, the General rn~ge?!h~ILbe, adjusti'ijitp reflect the $700,000 payment 
in accordance with the $,~tt!~ment AgreJ@,ftnt terYfr~;·::~J,,JOO,Oo'O;,QP (Two Million One Hundred 
Thousand) dollars shaJt{~'.e'·-U~;gitJor the JsbrowJ~6~:SJ8Jt;th,e, ppp'; Also $3,200,000.00 (Three 
Million Two HundredfTH~usand/~JJgcated ir/tfisfG~~-~ral L~dg~r for the Recreation Center shall 
be removed in accord~~'q~)Nlth cdQ'6cil's reJed'19fi_of the sale, and transferred to the PPP escrow 
fund, providin_g_the tota1'6tl$:1.2,:3.9;b;bo.O,QO (Tw~·lv~:Million Three Hundred Thousand) dollars . 

. _.;::{(i$:J1/f};}~;,li>..... ·•··A:r1.~t::ti~WA:rci-·,/,~\:I¼.\;;}".·•··. ··{tm} 
WHER.~AM:the Citi/ 'ofifgntiac?~b.&l. Omeg~f sb~.!.bFi:lve a special meeting to discuss the best 
finandafm.~chanism to /g{g~;1wenhl;MiJlion Doll~Fs ($20,000,000) to be put in an escrow account 
for the r~ff~frn, renovatlo~'£;Jt~ining;1~'b~t updating Park Place Little City. All funds distribution· 
will requirelli~;~?ignature of O'/n}ga MaH~i'ing Member (Lawrence F. Jasper II) and the Mayor of 
Pontiac. HoweJ§r:tfunds shall [,ij;haken out in lump sums monthly, once released from escrow 
the Managing MeMB:~tshall b~;/p:~1e to disperse It to various entitles, for the PPP's operational 
and development ma:h~g~m~.otf~'t\d oversight. 

WHEREAS, for any reas~~!:~~:::,a's refinance doesn1t happen prior to the end of the 3Hyear term, 
Park Place Little City shall be sold. The City wlll be paid ln full Twenty Million dollars ($20,000,000) 
plus 20% interest at term, and the voters will split a 10% percent of the net proceeds, paid first. 
The remainder of the proceeds will be split between Omega and the City. 

WHEREAS, for any reason the money's, zoning, approvals, and/or any city obligation is not in a 
timely fashion and/or speedy resolution; Omega may reinstate the Settlement Agreement, and 
the City shall be in default. Omega shall provide written notice to the City within 7 days of any 
violation. The City shall have 7 days to remedy the violation or be considered In default of the 

3 



Settlement Agreement. All mediation shall occur within 30 days of remedy's tlmeline. Omega 
shall be entitled to free and clear title of the Phoenix Facility, Amphitheater, and shall receive a 
payment of Thirty Million Dollars ($30,000,000) as a penalty, within 1 years of the violation from 
the City, and an order shall be issued by the Court. 

WHEREAS, The Pontiac City Council shall oversee the Public Private Partnership responsibilities 
and approve them monthly. In order to be transparent Omega shall provide reports on a monthly 
basis at City Council Meetings outlining the status of the Park Place Little City development, the 
digital platform, educational and small business benefits respestively, for the voters of Pontiac. 

WHEREAS, Omega shall use as many small businesses as pos~fW/~
5

:~n the restoration, construction1 

technology systems with the citizens of Pontiac, they ~h~HC'H.@;g!ven priority In the hiring process 
of its workforce through this Memorandum of Un_(,i_et~li'hditi'ti1tn~ future operations. Pontiac 
voters shall be given preference for all of the jop_s.iftlm develop 'tS::Q'p~rations. 
' .l(tlff-P' ,:<Bt~,;, 
WHEREAS, Omega and the City agree to hire t-ff~V~ttorney firm Clark HIIIYci:WrJte the Public Private 
Partnership (PPP)1 the franchise agreements ancf~°ltJ¥!gal doSJtt!J,ents outlin'i~d.]fg,r Park Place Little 
City In this Memorandum of Underst,mding, The feii]bi=!ll)b~4)paid out of the"P[tJnership. 

-~i~~\~},\:~?:, . ; ;:~.~:~f!itJj~)/;·· ,:~\c .• • . 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,fh;jWbnoti~W City CoG'ri'tHj1Uthorized the Mayor to enter into 
a Public Private Partnership with Omeg1t1JqveJl:~:~ricts,Ltd. TH'J:;Q[W to supply Capital Bonds in the 
amount of Twenty Millioo,dQJlars ($20,0o'ciJooo) for';tb'e>acquisidot{~nd conversion of the Ottawa 
Towers and the Pho~n,ix'.,#tiifiitvL~reating th~,;l)ew d~virn~%:fJntca1iJd the Park Place Little City a 
new mixed use devel~ijg1ent, c6~~~tcing A~fJ{f\~/1020. "~~{if) 

MEMORAND.UMi:~i\uNtl'~ESTAN~lN:G AND AGREEMENT To FORM A 
,;,::~·t.,·-,:.:_'.;!,T>·:~/::~·-::i;·c:.-. \·=:; !~•\!~ ... -.. ~_;;.:;-' .. ::. '~;_-::i:t:'~~·--~ ~-~;.<;,_:;=.,,, 

Rl:J.BLICPRJ\lATE PARTNERSl-llFtFOR THE ACQUISTION OF THE 
OTf:TAWA To\Xi'eas JlJ\r[)-iCOMBn~ilNG THEM WITH THE PHOENIX 

''?~~~;));'cfACILITic'REATfN(3'JHE PARK PLACE LITTLE CITY 

This ~:~~~~\itjum of ~i,rstan:::g and Agreement to form a Public Private Partnership 
for the Acquisition ~ft6;~_:,Plt~)iffowers AND combining them with Phoenix Facility creating the 
Park Place Little City (11M~fu§tl1'i"dum of Understandingli), dated this 15th Day of April, 2020 is by 
and between Omega lnves'tments Ltd., 265 Marlborough, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan, 48302 
("Omega11

) and the City of Pontiac, 450 E. Wide Track Drive, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 ("City"). 

IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the Omega is a Corporation for profit 
established by the BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT, Act 284 of 1972, as amended. 

IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the City is a municipal corporation 
operating under the City Charter pursuant to the Home Rule Act, Act 279 of 1909, as amended. 

4 



IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the City is the owner of the Phoenix Center 
Parking, Pontiac, Ml 48342 ("Parking Deck11

). 

IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the City & Omega shall use the Municipal 
Partnership Act1 Act 258 of 2011 for jurisdiction to form the Private Public Partnership. 

IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that Omega has extensive real estate 
experience and expertise in the purchasing1 management1 development1 technology systems and 
franchising for the construction of new green1 clean1 and digitalized mix used developments. 

IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that on D~c~ffi.ber 16, 2019 Omega submitted 
an RFP and supplement that met the needs of the City of P,QQ!,l}c;· and during a close-door session 
approved the selection of Omega to suspend the Settl~.rfi.]Ji't'.;.li;greement1 s default and enter into 
a Public Private Partnership to convert the Ottawa Towij}lanti'ih~Yhoenix Center into 0mega1s 
Park Place Little City franchised digitalized mixeqJ;i$~}developm~tit;~,~~rseeing and managing the 
LC operations, and training the City of Pontla~J~~~i"the franchisee. '\ltt,< 

?:~?(r..... ..·7\:ii.tt~:: 

IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGR~i5:zthat Om~ga,,and the 2/t~foesire to enter into 
and be legally bound by this Memor~nqum of UndJ'?1t~nsli.,6lltfc1 a Public Prio1t.~,:Partnership for 
the restoration of the Ottawa Towe/;:ihd.J>hoenix Par~lH.g~Deck. :,' 

. -:,:;r;_•·.·;:f;:\i;:,. •, ., .... ,. ;,. 

NOW THEREFORE1 intending t:i~d,~~~'jjy}~9,vrd he;Jby;Jp consideration of the premises 
and mutual agreementsbert':linafter set fdrth, andfBH¢th.~rgoo'tfa,h.? valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency£RfNGht2l?ii.rf;l herebvlc:~nowl,i~g~d}:\h~ pa~ti~s hereto further ·understand 
and agree as followsf{!i{{ '":fie\ '-~ ·--:,~.:;::;/,;; ''')if]), 

. ·:·-',:~:,_• \j)/~, ;:\::}/;/' 
·-";';;,.;;,:-.;•, 

1. Appoi~tment. Th~:Qi_tyhe(e~\'.'.~Ppoints ci\~s}ga Managing Member of the PPP to manage 
ang,iGP.lrY($Jk9irect'if!f!.ti1WarF&ttivt;wberl~pplicable, the ongoing business operations 

:i~fiH{tottaWciiT/D'.¼(~rs ~Wdjp:qoenix park}p~;J5eck, and agrees that during the term of this 
.,,~:~.rnorandum df.WO.n.derst~n;clirig, that 'Omega may take such actions as It deems 
r;i'sgl)pbly necess~°f\'(it.9 renH~,rt.~~ch management services to the City. The City shall 
provlt!$/,~apltal B6nd,~tl'?~t asid~'{lh escrow to acquire the Ottawa Towers, and any 
improvJH{$.p~s for the "•gW,r,king Deck1 and sufficient funds for Omega to perform the 
ManagemJ1Yt)~~rvices aJ~ilt forth ln this Memorandum of Understanding. 

'-''\l{,~::r"'_;}tti1:rf'· 
2. Acceptance. That'Qij'\,~ga hereby accepts such appointment by the City and agrees to act 

in accordance wlth'"'the duties and responsibilities set forth in this Memorandum of 
Understanding and to take such actions as may reasonably be required to discharge such 
duties and responsibilities. 

3. Term. This Memorandum of Understanding shall become effective Aprll 15, 2020 and 
shall expire on November 30, 2020, except if the PPP is signed by both parties. The parties 
may mutually agree to extend the Term, with extension terms as mutually agreed upon, 
by either party providing written notice of Intent to exercise extension option on or 

5 



before June 1, 2020. Any extensions of the stated term of this Memorandum of 
Understanding must be made expressly, In writing, and executed by both parties, 

4. City Obligations. The City shall comply with the following obligations under this 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

(a) The City shall provide City Capital Bonds in the amount of Twenty Million dollars 
($20,000,000), required to support the PPP into,c,;pmpliance with applicable local, 
state and federal health and safety regulatjpij~;{~"s set forth, including, but not 
limited to the acquisition of the Ottawa Towl@T& II and Settlement Agreement 
Rights, !ts renovation, and repairs to th!;!.if§:b'~'U\Jiqn, concrete, electrical systems, 

;.\);-;·;.~:::+· ··:,,-:,\,,:.,~·., 

lighting, circuits, gates, stairs, elevatqrs,ahd its te~hnology systems of the Parking 
Deck throughout the Term of thl~:J0]\horandum ~rQhtjerstanding; 

,(i1}};;Jf'" \\/%\r .. 
(b) The City shall grant Omega acce's~;.?,Qd use of a_ny existing'~pagement, financial 

and/or accounting systems(s) use'd,(tg:.f per9t~.ttbe Parking b~:¢t If such systems 
do not exist, Omega,i,.yjlJ.obtain such'\iy~J~Jtl.~i1s°it deems appr6ptiate to operate 
the Parking Deck andttH.~/Qt(awa Towei§Wb}~ccordance to the PPP. Any systems 
obtained by Omega whF:t~M~ihtbe prop~fi~}?f Omega throughout the Term of 
this Memorandum of url~ir~ta'~ifi6gt, ,},~>:, 

.,.,,.,., ·:':.:~-~{{/.\= f~ , 

__ }:;'.~i·sr.~{fi)fl>;;:\ :}\ ,",'\? :·,,f:tc_... ?Jc:-
( c) The ~ltv?shall pro~Ji;lf adequa\~.&~¢\lrlty foFfb~· PPP as determined by Omega, 

includiifgXb,,ut not 11Hfoed to, mdBfi{patrol by the Oakland County Sheriff; and 
"":{1:\~/.;~ _.;'/J.;i ·.:.·tit:~. 

,,;;f;fJ'F+~itbBtfY.~b;;?gti~t:1s!~,;{~+!(%run2n,~l~fHundred Thousand dollars ($5,600,000) in 
,/'.:{;{?' up front'Wb:t~lng·e~~ltal for Orri~~¾:'acquisition of the Ottawa Towers and initiate 

<fr'){:., the duties'~lr~f;},t fortiWrhJhis Memorandum of Understanding and pay expenses 
''?tt,?,~soclated wffiflbe ope

0

r'a{l)2ns of the restorations of the Ottawa Towers I & II, and 
-;tli¢:,,.Parking D€cik\repalrs/'including maintenance fees, operations cost, and 
s~H~!i~~/incldent~l$. as set forth in Exhibits A & B. The working capital wlll remain 
the pF6ptmy ofltitCity and shall be returned to the City at the conclusion of the 
Term oiWffs::J'i~(iibrandum of Understanding or the PPP through the refinance or 
sale of theifg:V~i,opment. It ls expressly understood and agreed that the City shall 
remain solely responsible for paying all utility expenses associated with the 
operation of development of the Park Place Little City during the Term of this 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

s. Park Place Little City Operations and Management Services. Omega shall provide all labor 
personnel necessary to manage and operate the Ottawa Towers I & II and Parking Deck, 
Including Omega's executives and a staff to oversee restoration, technology systems, PPP 

6 



updates, and maintenance. Omega shall also provide general management advice with 
respect to the following: 

(a) Financial matters including, acquisition, cash flow management, accounting data 
processing systems and procedures, budgeting, equipment purchases, business 
forecast, capital expenditures, and annual budgets and projections; 

(b) Administration and operation matters included in operational development digital 
green and clean technology, research, marketin&,. and promotions; 

~ .:::g:~~~:z 
.,,.:-~ 

(c) Management of Authority personnel assigri~l1}1;\he development and operations 
of the PPP; ,{}t?:::St";'JI\~H;'r. 

(d) Design and Implementation oufif!i :: Place Littl~·:r\;,lianchise renovations and 
construction of capital lmprov~'N{il}Js; and ·,·'>;i\s, 

·.,:·.t¾1>.-. . -.-,·~-:t~·--.+, 
-;\_~\~? .-;{_f/;·~-~. 

(e) Acquisition of the OtfgW,~;Jowers I & rtw,tH}the Settlement Ag!~~ement between 
the City and owners ofth~'Ot\awa Toweri1W~$ently, excluding the 4 payments of 
Seven Hundred Thousa~d'.i'($70o;bpo)owed bV\th~ City. 

·_:~:,\}.·. ·ro,..-:·:,:2\'·\:ii~:~\. ':!~\{:\,_~ 

6. Insurance and·[Jili!~f/fa~lion. . 'i-(J,, • t{';fiic1; i!C.: 
(a) The df;z:ib,all be rci·$W~nsible f6(n,~Yh-talning i~~o'}ance to cover the real property 

and struHuh_;is of th~:©ttawa Tow~b; and Parking Deck, as well as any fixtures. The 
,</City,shall nJ:M~:cQ.fuijg•Jt~laJ1flddit'16B;;il insured on all applicable policies that the 

.,lJ;-;f f¥''fc·1tvh?{~J.Pl,ii_ns'v~fij{~: t~·rr;~Y~;~tiv}:,t~: 

{'.'.,i/}p) The City sh11(p~ respb[~Jble for maintaining an umbrella policy to cover any small 
·\f}b,'2\Jsiness com

0

p0
~Nes usea';~,l.tring the Term, that reside their businesses in Pontiac 

··tnJ:L.used by Oniifl9 as subt'bntractors for any of the operations for the PPP. 

\lt:th .·:•.'.,l.t,-.;.·.~.t.:.:·:·:,I_) 'J•:\'(::: ." ' 

(c) Omega ·--~h~Ui~j't;if~sponsible for maintaining insurance to cover all business 
personal pI6'~'iihv belonging to, procured by, and/or leased by Omega, and Omega 
shall also be responsible for maintaining worker's compensation Insurance for 
Omega employees associated to the Ottawa Towers I & II operations. 

(d) The City shall, at its own expense, secure and deliver to Omega, and shall keep in 
force at all times during the Term, the following insurance policies which shall 
name Omega as an additional insured, In form acceptable to Omega. The City's 
insurance pollcles shall be primary over any pollcies Omega may have. 

7 



6.1 Types of Insurance. 

6.1.1 Commercial general liability insurance policy in an amount of not less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage. Coverage should include premises/operation of PPP, products/completed 
operations, personal and advertising injury, contractual liability and fire damage legal 
liability. 

6.1.2. Excess liability insurance In an amount not less than Ten Million Dollars 
($10,000,000) for each occurrence; this coverageJ!.;';tb. provide excess limits over the 
commercial general liability, commercial automJiB.Jii'liability, workers compensation, 
and employee

1
s liability. . .,/~~:!.t;~f~}}',i(~:;c., 

6.1.3. Comprehensive automoti\(~}~p.dily injur~t;i~a}p,roperty damage Insurance 
covering all vehicles whether owry,~ll,~(J'r"non-owned by ·c'fty;pr operated by Omega's 
Employee's or on behalf of the c'it~;9t small businesses atf1.&h.(].d to the PPP in the 
performance of the Services, with a c6fnpt~ed slt}~l~)lmlt of n;tf~}~,than One Million 

Dollars ($1,000,000). r)J:i,tfk, '\i'!i0t(/i;;7 ''J')p 
6.1.4. Employer1s liaBll!tf:·h1}yr,;1_nce in an\a'rnount not less than Five Hundred 

Thousand Dollars ($500,000)!,fqr ~JcH;~f<;:ident. '',''./ts:. 
\ ,.-.::,i,. . - :~ .. \~'.;~:>t. '-= ":.~/- ··,,. 

6.1.5 ... 0,~tf<l'fi(b,oxnpensa;;f~n)ns1Jr..~~'i1itQ:t}(;it;
0

2~;'.~mall Businesses Employees 
assigned•.'MTM~ Ottaw~\Towers I -gt·11.~11~:'park1~io'J'tk In the duration of the PPP, as 

re q ~ ired bf ~!~~~;::c;.4~ f ,:,~s;r,:,•:_,,_, ... _.·. · ijg;:r:'e . · 
.,,.f;)~;/l~,\.r .. ;:•~'-:\.: .. ,";.,-. : ·.·;7->·• '•~':i 

,\::,;;(/ '; i\ff!'BI;,, '<\,. 'C\i(ff,,:-_t,·_--_',._.~---_:_,f:,,.,,. -,· 
~~\\\t{::. · .. : ~·=v:~~~-/:•·. _ ·•;:~;.,t)':._ 
·6;~•.;:. General in'~hfonce Regu.Jrements. AH of the foregoing policies of Insurance shall 

•tt~1';'':provlde andig~}JD,~lude';t~--~;f.pllowing terms, requirements and provisions: 

'lt~Jt A valid :f!YJslon o/!~dorsement stating. "This policy will not be canceled 
or materlally;;Q_b.anged gtf~ltered without first giving thirty (30) days' advance written 

not ice th ereoftB;;~ffi:f ~~~tW' 
6.2.2 Not leis than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any insurance policy 

during the Term, the City shall provide evidencing the renewal of such policy or policies. 

6,2.3. The coverage shall be occurrence-based, not cl alms made unless approved 
by Omega. 

6.2.4 The Insurance described shall be obtained from one or more insurance 
companies duly authorized to issue such policies In the State of Michigan and carry an 

8 



A.M. Best rating of at least 11A XI" or successor or substitute rating service acceptable to 
Omega. 

6.3 Minimum Requirements. The City hereby acknowledges that the insurance policy 
terms, · 11mits and conditions set forth herein, constitute Minimum Insurance 
Requirements and shall in no way be interpreted to limit or restrict the amount of 
insurance that the City should secure. Nor shall the foregoing Minimum Insurance 
Requirements limit the liabilities or obligations of the City under this Memoranqum of 
Understanding, Including without limitations, the City's. indemnification obligations set 

:~:

th 

h:::n~ubcontractors. Any subcontracto,,,t[~~il !":mega In supporting the City's 
small businesses, by the City shall Include Omega 9,,f}t!JJ's Dlr€ctg.r§., Officers, and Employees or 
Contracted Employees as additional insured und~J{lt~tpolicies in it~tm acceptable to Omega. All 
insurance requirements set forth herein, inclygmg%inimum requir¥'hJ'¢,tiJs and terms related to 
cancellation and/or modification of lnsurancd/i.tt.~ll apply to all City Subtqntr,actors, to the fullest 
extent applicable to the portion of the services mi:~,:provid~~tthe Ottawlibwers I & II and the 
Parking Deck. It is expressly unders\9.9d and agre~it:{6:~utl'~{f~quirements 6f'S~vtion 6.4 do not 
apply to Omega as an lndependent'Q9]ifo:1~.tor hired by;~lt~"City or Omega in thf PPP. 

6.5 Suspension of Service~~~-+dU~friQ.Lack of lri~D~:ance. Omega shall notify the City 
whenever It has a reasonable belief tht\::the't'/t~Jrn.~ failedfp/~~cure or maintain insurance as 
required by this Memorfl.n.dqqi of Undel$tandlng;':N_otwtthstarfcHog any other provision of the 
Memorandum of un,tj"~fit~WalnJk after iHX}~ceJrt;J{Jf/ir.5A,~uch':}hotice, Omega and Omega 
Employees and Conf~J~~-d EmpldY#;~,s shall ncYt;~p{~lthe oftav/~"Towers I & II and/or the Parking 
Structure until the ctW:.,has se:~Q}ed and 'l$J)naintaining insurance as required by this 
Memorandurn,Rt~nder;rn:6BJ~~!dl:fi;~,0R(~Ssly JWqprstood and agreed that Omega has no duty 
to perfonr{?'rd:ontib.qe man'a@Jite11fseht)~l;lSjf tf{$~e_ is a lapse in insurance as required by this 

Memqf\i:~l::~:~~~~li~".~!:&;~~c\gr:::::~,••::ent permissible by law, the City shall 
'\\ilrg:jemnify, def~'6_9, andITf.{'old harmless Omega, its Directors, Officers and 

i~rfWtl9yees and 2:$htracted Employees from and against any and all losses, claims, 
da~'§'g~.~ and exp~_~ses {including reasonable cost of investigation and attorneys' 
fees) (cB}l~fti.vr~lilithe "Losses") arising from (I) City's failure to comply with any 
and all feitl~t~J}J~'tate, foreign, local, and/or municipal regulations, ordinances, 
statutes1 rulit laws, and/or constitutional provisions (collectrvely the 11Laws11

) 

applicable to performance under this Memorandum of Understanding, (ii) any 
unlawful acts on the part of City, City Employees and/or City Subcontractors 
and/or City small businesses working for Omega, (iii) personal or bodily injury to 
or death of persons or damage to the Ottawa Towers I & II, the Parking Deck 
and/or property of Omega which has been alleged to have been caused by the 
negligent and/or intentional acts, errors, and/or omissions, or the willful 
misconduct of City, City Employees and/or City Subcontractors and/or 
Subcontractors under the City's umbrella policy (Iv) Citis failure to pay any wages, 

9 



invoices, taxes, and/or other amounts to be paid by City as and when they are due, 
and/or (v) the material breach or default by City, City Employees and/or City 
Subcontractors and/or local Small Business Subcontractors of any provisions of 
this Memorandum of Understanding, including, but not limited to the acts and/or 
failures to act of City, its Employees, and/or City Subcontractors and/or local Small 
Business Subcontractors In completing capital improvements, and any and all 
liability, statutory, or otherwise, alleged to arise from operations of the Ottawa 
Towers I & II and Parking Deck. To the greatest extent permissible by law, Omega 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City against and from any and all 
liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, 9.li)tns, costs, charges, losses and 
expenses which may be imposed upon, in9Q:rt~i(by or asserted against the City 
where a loss is alleged to have been cay~;~~~1~~i!h~ gross negligence and/or willful 
or wanton misconduct of Omega,_ahij/3.r ff§\~employees and/or Contracted 
Employees In performing Serv(2~~· pursuan{'~!f'fq, this Memorandum of 
Understanding. •:.f;[~f¥[ffV '·:\)b>-. 

(f) Survival of Indemnity, The inde~Bfty'.vrovislpr'\s set fo::~~J;l:~·ftbi.s paragraph shall 
survive the termlnatiqn of this Mem'cW~p<;l,u/ft}ifunderstandi;g~j\;, 

t/;}[}\,:.,: ··•Jti:t\:(t'•"• ,·~-/' 
,.,_ -,- \1)?::;-·._ 

(g) Authority Not Respo~~bl~'.::~~-6-IT)e,gp shall -h•kbe responsible for any goods, 
merchandis\:l, inventory Bri:~quipffi~pt,gwned"Br)l1=.ased by the City and used, 
maintain~{t}bJ:'§~C}.red at the°Qttawa IO:wlf~J~dl aH~/or the Parking Deck. Nor will 
Omegi~'lresp.6'h$Jl?Je for an'y\~c1Jn~'~t\esJ'iHfr~Jrom a power failure, flood, fire, 
exploslorkyandalisft)1~;theft, ancl"9.J(other causes': 

·"•2~:::>. :<"-'-:'J, "·i\7/~-

7. GqrifW~l);i\~l),.Jn ;~ij}l.ff~~/;tt/Jt~~q~'ilt'bn of the Ottawa Towers and Management 
.'i$~f&Tces rend~rn~:,l;>NOJ~[c.l,~S pro~id~aifh:this Memorandum of Understanding, the City 
.,,§g'r~ftS to comper{t~tei,andHaV;the Omega as follows. 

'.:}{jjJik . , •+t&\. . }'f,;fa , 
(af1b.g City shall pay[Qmega an Acquisition Fee of 5% of the Sale price of the Ottawa 

T6Wers I & II, at tlh'fe of closing. 

(b) The

0

·~~~~'~fi}IJl,rtfi~mega 12.5% of the total fund established and held in escrow 
'...:'.:~.'-~\(,~--:/'.\!;\~ 

for Managefr)!;!lit of the restoration of the ottawa Tower I & II, and the Phoenix 
Parking Deck to include repairs, technology, and electrical and water purification 
updates to form the new entity called Park Place Little City. The City shall pay out 
this amount in monthly checks for a period of 2 years. 

(c) Any profit derived from the new multi-use development during the Term of this 
Memorandum of Understanding shall be split 50% between the Omega and the 
City. The Profit shall be calculated based on net Park Place little City revenue less 
any costs Incurred by Omega for performance of the Management Services. 

10 



8. Status as Independent Contractor. Omega recognizes that it is being engaged as an 
independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of the City. Omega 
acknowledges that as an independent contractor it is undertaking certain risks of loss not 
associated with an employment relationship. Under no circumstances is Omega 
consldered to be the agent of the City. Except as authorized under the terms of this 
Memorandum of Understanding, Omega shall have no authority to act in City's name or 
on its behalf or to enter into any contract or agreement on behalf of City or obligate City 
in any manner whatsoever. Omega shall be solely liabl~JH;lg responsible for paying its own 
employees1 subcontractors1 and agents, If any, andJsfffi{~\rlng all taxes Imposed, levied or 
assessed by any governmental agency, as appli~·~B,lii(on the compensation it receives 

from City. (iii{[i,}7''~\l{tir{:~};\, 

9. Subordination. This Memorandum Qti1aWaerstanding ihillt,,be subordinate to the 
Settlement Agreement and Released ~~liB November 1, 2018}((:'.{~~leased") attached as 
Exhibit B. It is expressly understood arid\~greed that,.any conflittff)"g obligations of the 
Parties set forth in this Memorandum of u'rt~l',!{stan4ffig are supers~~'.~ct-by the terms of 

the release. t\,;;i[;:;i;Y: ' (;~ti: '.\W 

<){\ . : ·t??/·\} ~·., \'.i.~.::.:-~> ... 
(a) The City under this Memo'rnpdutn:q;fJ)nderstahqJng shall receive a suspension of 

the SeW~tn~n.t,:/~greementr.~!~ase da}~'~J.'~p.yemHMff:1,? 2018, except the payments 
to Ott~i(ffo\Ne'r~1-:~ II totalitiijtTl;\/£tfil(ln6n1~J~~btHundred Thousand ($2,800,000) 
howeV~'i(!f for anyif~·ason Omefft{ffow allo~'etlto get the necessary approvals) 
funds, ift{~~)pg, or:,WHY other n'~$:~§d from the City to complete the Park Place 

~-,Mttle City pf6fo~t;;.,t'B:g\:¢ny;~hall b~)tl:9efault of the Settlement Agreement dated 

/:l)JMe'N'ciV~~"~sj{/'' 2'6i,~f~·~~"dM'f.~}~&:~;(~by Omega. 

10·:~,&~fault. If City c~:~::~Jgc.ts o-~:
1
f~O$.,,to perf~~~

1 

lt obligation to make .all necessary structural 
rep"~fftto the Ottawl;:f§_~ers r&f(i;jind the Parking Deck and attached fixtures, reimburse 
Omeg·~J•t,pay compeli:sltJon orf&"~s when due; If City neglects or fails to perform any 

•.,~,_~·-'! :• ~{i'j'.i)!". 

other coiie)iapts or oblig~Jions set forth in this Memorandum of Understanding to be 
observed aridfip,~rformdd}on its part for 7 days after written notice by Omega of the 
defaulti if Clty'tfifake:s~(~fly assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver or 
Emergency Mana~'~rt1!ilappointed for City or its property; or if any proceedings are 
Insolvency or against City in bankruptcy (including reorganization) or under any 
Insolvency laws, Omega may cease Services and terminate this Memorandum of 
Understand and initiate the Settlement Agreement released on November 1, 2018 shall 
be Imposed and defaulted; all rights belonging to Omega, 

11. Communications of Notices. Omega and the City shall each designate in writing a person 
to be advised as to any and all matters under this Memorandum of Understanding. Any 

. notices to be given hereunder by any party to any other party may be affected by personal 

11 



delivery, in writing, or by mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid with return receipt 
requested. Mailed notices shall be addressed to the parties at the addresses appearing 
below, but each party may change its address by written notice to the other party In 
accordance with the Paragraph 9. Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 
communicated as of actual receipt; mailed notices shall be deemed communicated as of 
five (5) days after mailing. 

To the Authority: Omega Investments Ltd. 
265 Marlborough . 
Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48~QZ\: 
Attn: Lawrence F. Ja,~pjf;WtcEO 
With Copy to: -"'l5•)iJ:P:{l£:{{·i· 

i,:t.· ...... :_.}.f_:,:: "'·•i•.':t: __ 
-· ~- '::,tr~~:\:. 

City of Pontia§}l} · ·>r-To the City 
47450 Wo,odYSard Ave. ·::{f~\ 

12. No Waiver of Rights. All w:11~;;~!::~~~~iO:'.:ei:::m~'~:: failure by any 
party at any time to require an'yfpthef+S~hv'.s perfo'rl1iince of any obligation under this 
Memorandum 9.f,::_0.ygg_:~rstandin~{tq:all 11'6f:;~ft~H! th~coit)~Qt subsequently to require 
performance,J:>fAth~F·~tBlt~ation. Aljt,:_w~JYiNori)~nY,.~rea'ch of any provision of this 
Memorandurfobf Undersfahding sha!EHotU)e·constrl:iedas a waiver of any continuing of 
succeeding br~~1J});9f such :gl•vision o/tw;1ver or mocl.ification of the provision. 

13. AssiSlihl~i\!}Neit:::~~Jt~iWi;i'~§\i1m9r'Of l~mpt to assign any of its rights or obligations 
. ,{#~t.~Dnder wffh9\JJ.the'·prJbr:written thqJe.,r,iiS't the other party, 

14::;;~*'.~ndment and·;~~a'tflca;~~¾i'.i'.NP amen~ment or modification of this Memorandum of 
Und~li(~Qdlng shall ir~~'.tJinding\Urless executed in writing by the party to be bound 
thereby/:?,i . '\c;i/ 

15. Entire ~:::~~j,k Tl)_l,emorandum of Understanding constitutes the complete and 
exclusive stateme'6H$JHhls Agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 
representations, ~~a~'rstandings, and communications, or and written, between the 
parties relating to the subject matter thereof. 

16. Severabillty. The parties expressly agree and contract that It is not the Intention of either 
them to violate any public policy, statutory or common laws, rules, regulations, treaties 
or decisions of any government or agency thereof. If any paragraph, sentence, clause, 
word or combination thereof in this Memorandum of Understanding is judicially or 
admlnistratlvely Interpreted or construed as being In violation of any such provision of 
any jurisdiction, such paragraph, sentence, word, clause or combination thereof shall be 

12 



inoperative In each such jurisdiction and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain 
binding upon the parties and the Agreement as a whole shall be unaffected elsewhere. 

17. Exclusive. This memorandum of Understanding and Agreement for Management of the 
Ottawa Towers I & II and Phoenix Facility Parking Deck is exclusive. The City may not hire 
other entities to provide similar Services as being provided by Omega hereunder. 

This Memorandum of Understanding and Agreement is recognized and accepted by the 
undersigned as a contractual agreement and obligation bound upon the consideration of services 
and/or monies as described herein The obligation of this fvltiJUPrandum of Understanding and 
Agreement shall be performed by the undersigned or tb,q$~§idwfully acting on their behalf in 
conjunction with the completion and fulfillment of th.~~{%.fl'tf~jionditions and provisions as set 
forth, and shall be Interpreted in accordance with the:.l~Wi oftn.~~State of Michigan. 

:·.-~-;~.\~t~:· . ·,::.~:\)~:)\ ... ~_ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto ha&fil:f:'ed this Memor:~]Ui,io.f Understanding and 
Agreement for Management and Operation of Pit~;pJace Uttt~.pty includiM'ii_:the restoration and 
renovation of the Ottawa Towers I ~J along with tfi'e;l'hqe:t'Ji>fParking Facility.\~nd any attached 
fixtures to be signed by their duly aU:th'.<ttized officers·'.~if~~f¢~resentatives. ., ···· ~r:;f ?ti->> · .. ,-:,., . 

. ·:\f·\',--
Omega Investments 

Witness Date 

City of Pontiac 

Deirdre Waterman, Mayor Date 

13 



Kermit Williams, President of Council Members Date 

Randy Carter, Council Member Date 

Gloria Miller, Council Member 

Patrice Waterman, Council Member 

George Williams, Council Member 

Taylor 

Date 

Witness Date 

14 



Pimpernel Developments LLC ("Purchaser''} 
36400 Woodward Ave Ste 111 
Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48304 

September 15, 2020 

City of Pontiac ("City'') 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

RE: PHOENIX CENTER SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT LETTER OF INTENT ("PCSA LOI") 

Dear City of Pontiac, 

Please accept this binding Letter of Intent ("PCSA LOI") to purchase the Phoenix Center ("PC") and fully release the City from Its 
obligations and liabilities according to its Phoenix Center Settlement Agreement ("PCSA"} under the following proposed terms: 

Purchaser: 

Terms: 

Deposit: 

Installment: 

Conditions: 

Pimpernel Developments LLC, Red Pimpernel LLC, or an entity to be formed. 

Purchaser to purchase Ottawa Towers and PC then release City from PCSA In exchonge for City contributing to 
Purchaser Sum Certain Amount ("SCA") of no less than Seven Million Two Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand Sixty 
Dollars ($7,296,060.00) and no greater than Twenty Million Seven Hundred Eighty-Two Thc;iusand Four 
Hundred Eighty-Two Dollars ($20,782,482.00), Six Million Dollars ($6,000,000,00) over a ten (10) year period, 
master development agreement, preapprovals, incentives and miscellaneous (collectively, "PCSA LOI Terms"). 

City shall select A or Band submit Deposit Into Purchaser's Escrow Account within three (3) business days of 
day and year first written above by 5:00 PM EST. Deposit amounts becoming Immediately nonrefundable and 
available to Purchaser shall be applicable to the SCA, or In the event Purchaser assigns Its Ottawa PSA to City, 
the Purchase Price of the offer Seller presented to City on August 18, 2020, or In the event City defaults, the 
amount of monetary ramificatrons of Its default. Upon Purchaser's receipt of Deposit, Seller shall extend City's 
deadline of Its Phoenix Center Settlement Agreement ("PCSA") entered into effective with Seller on November 
1, 2018 and Purchaser's deadline of its Agreement of Purchase and Sale Ottawa Towers and PCSA Assignment 
entered into effective with Seller on November 15, 2019 ("Ottawa PSA") as follows (collectively "Deadllnes"): 

A. Seven Million Two Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand Sixty Dollars ($7,296,060.00), with One Million Two 
Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand Dollars ($1,296,000.00) becoming Immediately nonrefundable and available 
to Purchaser but applicable to the SCA. Upon Purchaser's receipt of Deposit, Seller shall extend Deadlines 
by One Hundred Twenty (120) Days, from November 1, 2020 to March 1, 2021 ("Initial Deadlines 
Extension"). City shall then have the option to further extend Initial Deadlines Extension by up to Four (4) 
Periods of Thirty (30) Days by informing Purchaser In writing of each extension at least sixty (60) days prior 
to Deadlines, with One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000.00) per Period becoming 
immediately nonrefundable and available to Purchaser but applicable to the SCA, thus extending Deadllnes 
One Hundred Twenty (120) Days, from March 1, 2020 to June 29, 2021 ("Deadlines Extension"). 

B. One Million Two Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand Dollars ($1,296,000.00) immediately nonrefundable and 
available to Purchaser but applicable to SCA. Upon Purchaser's receipt of Deposit, Seller shall extend 
Deadllnes by Ninety (90) Days, from November 1, 2020 to January 30, 2021 ("Initial Deadlines Extension"). 
City shall then have the option to further extend Initial Deadlines Extension by up to Three (3) Periods of 
Thirty (30) Days by informing Purchaser In writing of each extension at least sixty (60) days prior to 
Deadlines, with Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per Period becoming Immediately nonrefundable and 
available to Purchaser but oppllcable to SCA, thus extending Deadlines an additional Ninety (90) Days, from 
January 30, 202Ho April 30, 2021 ("Deadlines Extension"). 

SCA LESS Deposit LESS outstanding due yet unpayable FY 2020-21 ("installment") to be deposited by City into 
Purchaser's Escrow by Deadlines Extension 5:00 PM EST becoming Immediately nonrefundable and available 
to Purchaser but applicable to SCA. SCA LESS Deposit LESS Installment ("Installments") TBD by the Agreement. 

Purchase contingent upon the following conditions: 

• This LOI, This LOI shall be made exclusive wholly to Purchaser and assignable In whole or in part by 
Purchaser. Upon Purchaser's receipt of Deposit, Purchaser shall submit its Ottawa PSA into escrow and the 
Parties shall be bound to completing a transaction conveying ownership of Ottawa Towers and PC to 

[Expires on September 15, 2020 at 11:59 PM] ·1-



Purchaser then Purchaser fully releasing City from its obligations and liabilities according to Its PCSA. In the 
event Purchaser does not close Ottawa Towers, City shall have the right of first refusaf to accept Purchaser's 
assignment of its Ottawa PSA. City commits to conveying ownership of PC and contributing PCSA LOI Terms 
to Purchaser. Seller commits to extending both City's November 1, 2020 deadline of its PCSA and Purchaser's 
deadline of Its Ottawa PSA and granting Purchaser a land contract option according to the terms of an email 
sent by Purchaser to Seller on Friday, July 31, 2020 at 12:18 PM EST. Purchaser commits to purchasing 
Ottawa Towers and PC, and upon dosing Ottawa Towers and contingent upon City fulfilling Its PCSA LOI 
Terms according to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, fully releasing City from the PCSA. Purchaser 
is open to idea of City retaining and/or attaining a percent ownership of PC and/or Ottawa, but unless 
otherwise agreed to In writing according to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, City shall transfer 
full ownership and responsibility of PC to Purchaser In exchange for its full release from the PCSA. 

" The Agreement. An agreement shall be made and executed by and between Purchaser and City, upon full 
execution of this LOI and by at least sixty {60) days prior to the Deadlines Extension (" Agreement"), exclusive 
wholly to Purchaser and assignable in whole or In part by Purchaser and shall Include but is not limited to 
the Terms of this LOI, with SCA, Deposit and lnstallment(s) amounts and terms determined by Purchaser and 
City Interim Financial Director ("IFD"} and master development agreement, preapprovals, incentives and 
miscellaneous by Purchaser and City Legal Counsel Economic Development and Business Plans ("LC-EDBP"). 

• Toe Schools. In good faith and In return for Deposit, Purchaser shall transfer to City ownership of Longfellow 
School, Perdue Academy, and Jefferson School (the "Schools"), with Purchaser deciding whether transferred 
by sales or donations and City taking titles within sixty (60) days of the day and year first written above, 
unless otherwise extended In writing by and only by Purchaser for up to four (4) periods of thirty (30) days. 

• Confldentlallty, City shall henceforth obtain explicit prior written consent of Purchaser before disclosing any 
information in whole or in part to maximum legally permissible extent regarding this LOI and the Agreement. 

Upon City's acceptance of this LOI, Seller shall accept and Purchaser present City a deposit agreement within two (2) business days. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this LOI under seal as of the day and year first above written. 

PURCHASER: 
PIMPERNEL DEVELOPMENTS LLC, RED PIMPERNEL LLC, OR AN ETBF 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Cir{: 

Niccolo G. Mastromatteo 
Authorized Manager 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

By: 
Name: Deirdre Waterman 
Title: Mayor 

By: 
Name: Kermit Williams 
Title: Council President 

By: 
Name: John Clark 
Title: Attorney 

SELLER: 
NORTH BAY DRYWALL, INC. PROFIT SHARING PlAN & TRUST, 
OTTAWA TOWER II, L.L,C., PONTIAC INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, LLC 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

Charles R. Stephens 
Authorized Trustee/ Manager 

(Expires on September 15, 2020 at 11:59 PM) -2-





PRESENTATION TO PONTIAC CITY 
COUNCIL 

Settlement Agreement in 

CPREA v. City of Pontiac 

September 15, 2020 

G"MIIGIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C. 
ATTORNEYS ANO COUNSElOIS AT lAW 



LITIGATION 

•CPREA FILED A CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT ON JUNE 27, 2012; 

•CPREA CLAIMS THAT THE CITY MADE PROMISES TO GERS RETIREES IN COLLECTIVE 
BARGAINING AGREEMENTS THAT THEY WOULD RECEIVE LIFETIME RETIREE HEAL TH 
BENEFITS FULLY PAID FOR BY CITY; 

•PLAINTIFFS CLAIM THAT EMERGENCY MANAGER SCHIMMEL BROKE THOSE PROMISES 
BY, IN DECEMBER 2011, CHANGING BENEFITS AND SHIFTING RETIREE HEAL TH COSTS 
TO THE RETIREES; 

•THE LAWSUIT ASKS THE COURT TO FORCE THE CITY TO REINSTATE BENEFITS AT 2011 
LEVELS AND PAY RETIREES FOR ALL DAMAGES THEY'VE SUFFERED BETWEEN 2011 
AND TODAY; 

•PLAINTIFFS ALSO ASKED THE COURT TO CERTIFY A CLASS OF OVER 1,000 CITY OF 
PONTIAC RETIREES. 

GMIIGIARMARCO, MUWNS & HORTON, P.C. 
AfTOINfYS A N D COUNSE- L OIS A l I AW 



MEDIATION 

•CPREAAND THE CITY BEGAN THE MEDIATION PROCESS IN EARLY 2015; 

•THEY UTILIZED A FACILITATOR NAMED EUGENE DRIKER TO ATTEMPT TO FIND 
COMMON GROUND BETWEEN THE PARTIES; 

•MEDIATION CONTINUED THROUGH 2015 AND 2016, BUT DID NOT RESULT IN 
SETTLEMENT; 

•THE PARTIES DECIDED TO USE A NEW FACILITATOR NAMED KATHLEEN BOGAS, 
BEGINNING IN DECEMBER 2016; 

•ON MARCH 31 , 2017, THE PARTIES REACHED A TENTATIVE AGREEMENT ON THE 
TERMS OF A WRITTEN SETTLEMENT OF THE CPREA V. CITY OF PONTIAC; 

•SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WAS GIVEN FINAL APPROVAL BY COURT ON NOVEMBER 19, 
2018. 

GIARMARCO, MUUINS & HORTON, P.C. 
ATlOI.HIEYS AND C O UNSElOIS AT L A W 



TERMS OF THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
•CURRENT GERS PLAN IS OVERFUNDED. GERS PLAN WILL BE TERMINATED, NEW 
GERS PLAN CREATED; 

•SOME OF THE OVERFUNDING WILL BE PLACED INTO A NEW VEBA TO FUND HEAL TH 
BENEFITS TO THE RETIREES; 

•NEW GERS PLAN WILL KEEP ASSETS EQUAL TO 130% OF THE PENSION LIABILITIES OF 
THE OLD PLAN; 

•ELIGIBLE RETIREES/ EMPLOYEES RECEIVING / ENTITLED TO RECEIVE PENSION 
BENEFITS UNDER THE NEW GERS PLAN WILL BE IDENTICAL TO THOSE RECEIVING / 
ENTITLED TO RECEIVE BENEFITS UNDER THE OLD GERS PLAN; 

•NEW GERS PLAN WILL KEEP THE VERY SAME BOARD MEMBERSHIP AND 
PROPORTIONAL REPRESENTATION AS THE OLD PLAN; 

•NEW GERS PLAN WILL REQUIRE A SUPERMAJORITY FOR ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS 
AND IF IT EVER BECOMES LESS THAN 90% FUNDED. 

GMII GIARMARCO, MUWNS & HORTON, P.C. 
AllOI NE. YS AN O COU N SEto•s Al l AW 



TERMS OF THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT (Cont.) 

•THE POLICE & FIRE VEBA WILL BE MERGED INTO THE NEW VEBA; 

•THE CITY WILL INITIALLY CONTRIBUTE UP TO $4.25 MILLION TO THE NEW VEBA; 

•THAT PAYMENT WILL ALSO RESOLVE A SEPARATE POLICE & FIRE LAWSUIT AGAINST 
THE CITY; 

•THE CITY WILL CONTRIBUTE, FOR THE LIFE OF THE NEWVEBA, UP TO $1.5 MILLION 
ANNUALLY IF ACTUARIES DETERMINE THAT A CONTRIBUTION IS REQUIRED IN ANY 
GIVEN YEAR; 

•CITY'S ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION IS CAPPED AT $1.5 MILLION; 

•THE NEW VEBA WILL PROVIDE 1,573 RETIREES, SPOUSES, AND DEPENDENTS WITH 
HEAL TH, VISION AND DENTAL INSURANCE, WITH PREMIUMS PAID BY THE VEBA. 

GMIIGIARMARCO, MUUINS & HORTON, P.C. 
A T T O IN f YS AND COUNSEtOIR S A T lAW 



EFFECTUATION OF THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

PROCESS 

• TERMINATE THE OLD GERS (SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT § 6) 

• ESTABLISH THE NEW GERS WHICH WILL ASSUME 130% OF THE PENSION 
LIABILITIES OF THE OLD GERS (SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT § 6) 

• ESTABLISH A VEBA TO RECEIVE THE EXCESS ASSETS TO FUND RETIREE HEAL TH 
BENEFITS (SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT § 6) 

• MERGE THE POLICE AND FIRE VEBA INTO THE NEWLY CREATED VEBA 
(SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT § 7) 

GMIIGIARMARCO, MUUINS & HORTON, P.C. 
AT T OIN(YS ANO COUNSElOIS AT LAW 



EFFECTUATION OF THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT (CONT.) 

IRS APPROVAL - - FOUR SUBMISSIONS WERE MADE TO THE IRS ON MAY 22, 2020 
PURSUANT TO SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT § 6: 

•OLD GERS TERM/NAT/ON APPL/CATION - SEEKING DETERMINATION FROM THE IRS 
THAT THE GERS IS QUALIFIED UNDER THE IRC UPON ITS TERMINATION 

•NEW GERS APPL/CATION - SEEKING DETERMINATION FROM THE IRS THAT THE NEW 
GERS IS QUALIFIED UNDER THE IRC UPON ITS ESTABLISHMENT 

• VEBA APPL/CAT/ON - SEEKING DETERMINATION THAT THE VEBA IS TAX-EXEMPT 
(APPROVED BY THE IRS ON AUGUST 10, 2020) 

•PRIVATE LETTER RULING REQUEST - SEEKING A RULING THAT THE TRANSFER OF 
THE EXCESS ASSETS TO THE VEBA WILL NOT PRESENT ADVERSE TAX 
CONSEQUENCES TO THE CITY OR RETIREES 

GMIIGIARMARCO, MUUINS & HORTON, P.C. 
~ A. lTO•N fYS ANO C.OUNSE.LORS Af LAW 



NEXT STEPS 

•UPON APPROVAL BY THE IRS OF THE VARIOUS SUBMISSIONS, THE P&F VEBA MUST BE 
MERGED INTO THE NEW VEBA 

•CITY COUNCIL MUST ADOPT THE TERMINATION AMENDMENT FOR THE GERS AND 
ESTABLISH A TERMINATION DATE 

•CITY COUNCIL MUST ADOPT THE NEW GERS ORDINANCE AND ESTABLISH AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

•CITY COUNCIL MUST APPROVE THE MERGER OF THE VEBAS 

GMIIGIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C. 
AlTO•NEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 



END RESULT 

•PENSION BENEFITS WILL BE PROVIDED THROUGH THE NEW GERS TO THE SAME EXTENT AS 
PREVIOUSLY PROVIDED THROUGH THE OLD GERS 

•APPROXJMATELY 1,500 RETIREES, DEPENDENTS, AND BENEFICIARIES HAVE CITY-FUNDED 
RETIREE HEAL TH BENEFITS RESTORED 

GIARMARCO, MULLINS & HORTON, P.C. 
AlTOINE'fS ANO COUNSElOl:S AT LA.W 



The City of Pontiac Retired Employees Association, et. al 
vs. 

Louis Schimmel, et. al. 

U.S. District Case No. 12-cv-12830 

CHRONOLOGY OF SETTLEMENT 

Pontiac City Council approval of proposed settlement between the 
July 13, 2017 City and Pontiac Retirees CCPREA") 

Hospital Retirees file Motion to Intervene in the Lawsuit and seek an 
September 2017 Order from the Court ruling the proposed settlement unlawful 

October 2017 
CPREA and the City file Response to Motion to Intervene 

Hearing on Motion to Intervene. Court defers a ruling on the Motion 
November 2017 to Intervene 

Initial preparation of motion for tentative approval of settlement 
January to March agreement. This is a highly complicated and detailed court pleading 

2018 that must meet several specific court rules and mandates. 

Hospital Retirees file response to motion for approval of settlement 
April 2018 asking for a ruling that the Settlement is unlawful 

Order Granting Joint Motion for Class Certification, Preliminary 

June 13, 2018 
Approval of Class Action Settlement, Approval of Proposed Class 
Notice, and Set Fairness Hearing 

City and CPREA file Joint Motion for Final Approval of Class Action 
August 13, 2018 Settlement 

August 29, 2018 
Hospital Retirees' file Objections to Proposed Settlement 

August - September 
City analysis of methods of termination of the GERS plan, with a 

2018 
reversion to the City, that will meet IRS requirement 

September 12, 2018 
Fairness Hearing - USDC - Judge Avern Cohn 

November 19, 2018 
Order Granting Motion for Final Approval of Class Action Settlement 

November 2018 -
Analysis of history of GERS retirement plan, actuarial valuations and 

March 2019 
prior ordinances entered by former boards, to determine that plan 
termination and reversion is consistent with those prior documents 



and decisions, and to confirm the required process for plan 
termination -

January - March Draft VEBA trust documents and associated documents 
2019 

Initial draft of new VEBA trust agreement presented to CPREA Board 
April 19, 2019 attorney 

July 25, 2019 
Receipt of CPREA Board attorney's initial comments on draft VEBA 
trust agreement 

August to October 
Several drafts of the VEBA trust agreement are exchanged between 

2019 
the City attorneys and attorney for the CPREA Board 

November 8, 2019 
Finalize VEBA trust agreement and related documents 

November 19, 2019 
City provides drafts to GERS Board of (1) proposed termination 
amendment to GERS; and (2) proposed Reestablished GERS· 

November 26, 2019 
Pontiac City Council approved resolution authorizing adoption of the 
VEBA trust agreement 

December 18, 2019 GERS Board meeting to discuss drafts provided by City; GERS Board 
directs its attorney to review 

GERS Board special meeting to discuss drafts provided by City. GERS 

January 30, 2020 
Board directs its attorney to meet with City attorney to finalize 
proposed termination amendment to GERS and proposed 
Reestablished GERS documents 
City provides updated drafts to GERS Board attorney and GERS 

February 4, 2020 Executive director accounting for GERS Board comments discussed at 
January 30, 2020 special meeting 

February 11, 2020 
City attorney and GERS Board attorney meet to finalize terms of 
documents. 

February 12, 2020 
City provides updated final drafts to GERS Board's attorney reflecting 
terms agreed to during February 11, 2020 meeting 

· March 23, 2020 VEBA documents fully executed 

March 24, 2020 GERS Board introduces a new reestablished GERS document 

April 29, 2020 
GERS Board meeting includes further discussion of its newly 
introduced document 

May 22, 2020 Applications filed with IRS ( 4 separate applications filed) 

August 10, 2020 
IRS approves application for tax-exempt status of VEBA (application 1 
of 4) 

34825060.3\071371-00075 





Darin S. Carrington 

Career Summary 

Experienced accounting and finance management professional with an accomplished track record with both public 
and private sector entities. Strong background in preparing, analyzing and advising on financial staternents, 
budgets, cash flows and financial projections. Excellent record with effectively leading and working with teams and 
in crlsis environments. 

Professional Experience 

CITY OF INKSTER, INKSTER, MICHIGAN 
Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer- 2016 - Present 
Appointed by the Mayor as the City's top financial official 

• Handle and oversee all financial matters for City operations including budgeting, purchasing, tax collections 
and treasury management 

• Lead the budget and funding process for all City departments and for water and road infrastructure projects 
• Work with the Mayor and Department heads to help determine and develop budget priorities and to ensure 

that City operations are in-line with budgeted funds 
• Prepare and present monthly and quarterly financial reports to City Council and residents 
• Analyze and review U)e City's cash flow needs to ensure effective use of cash and ensure ability to rneet all 

financial obligations 
• Serve as one of the lead negotiators with labor unions and successfully negotiated agreements with all 

bargaining units 
• Serve as Administrator for City's pension funds and manage the City's retiree healthcare activities 

CITY OF DETROIT, DETROIT, MICHIGAN 
Assistant Director, Office of Chief Financial Officer- 2012 - 2016 
Served as Project Manager and Special Advisor to Finance Director working on key projects for City's financial 
operations and restructuring, 

• Worked with Finance Director, Finance Department leaders, City Department heads and outside 
consultants on a number of critical issues related to City's bankruptcy and financial restructuring 

• Served on Critical Vendor Committee to determine payments to key vendors and monitor City's cash flow 
during pre and post bankruptcy phase when City was experiencing severe cash flow issues 

• Tracked and analyzed expenditures to determine financial performance against adopted budget 
• Helped the City identify and collect new revenue streams and improve on collection of existing revenue 

streams by developing, implementing and improving inter-departmental processes 
• Identified and prepared accounting journal entries needed to assist with the preparing and completion of 

the City's annual financial report (CAFR) 
• Helped lead effort in assessing the City's IT systems, worked with key stakeholders to develop 

requirements for City's new ERP system and reviewed vendor proposals for new system 

CARRINGTON ADVISORS, WASHINGTON, DC 
Consultant - 2010 - 2012 

• Served as a consultant to companies and groups for investments, accounting, finance and contracting 
• Developed and reviewed proposals for companies seeking financing of investment funds and other projects 
• Helped clients raise over $50 million in funding commitments 
• Help lead efforts for launching new investment funds and projects 

WATTS COMPANIES, WASHINGTON, DC 
Privately held ho/cling and investment company with $30 million in revenue 
Vice President/CFO • Finance - 2003 • 2009 

• Led the accounting, finance and tax operations for diverse holding company with 75 employees and $30 
million in revenues 

• Assessed and analyzed cash flow needs to determine financing of investments and working capital 



Darin Carrington Page 2 

.. Prepared regular monthly, quarterly and annual financial statements to provide key financial information to 
officers and board for strategic planning 

" Supervised policies and help implement improvements for payments to vendors and revenue collections 
" Led the acquisition of two businesses and implemented new accounting and reporting processes 

BELLSOUTH CORPORATION, ATLANTA, GA 
Fortune 100 telecommunications company 
Senior Finance Manager - 2000 - 2003 

• Helped company determine short and long term capital needs by analyzing financial projections and actual 
performance · 

• Managed five member team that served as an interface with various corporate departments in preparing 
financial projections, business plans and business cases to assess and determine companies short and 
long-term capital needs 

• Helped company to successfully maintain its credit rating by leading efforts in preparing and presenting to 
major credit rating agencies 

ERNST & YOUNG, CHICAGO, IL 
Senior Consultant- 1999 - 2000 

• Analyzed clients' short and long term liquidity needs to assist clients with developing options to maintain 
solvency and continue operations 

• Created financial models to project clients cash flow needs and develop pro-forma financial statements 
• Help improve clients operating performance by conducting industry research and preparation of strategic 

and operational plans 

SEGUE, FAIR, ADAMS & POPE, DETROIT, Ml 
Boutique Corporate Law Firm 
Attorney• 1994 - 1997 

• Worked with issuers and underwriters of municipal securities for financing of public bonds 
• Provided legal advice for tax and securities work to public and private clients to ensure transactions met 

legal requirements and addressed clients' needs 
• Drafted and reviewed disclosure documents, contracts and other legal documents 

MANUFACTURERS HANOVER BANK, NEW YORK, NY 
Financial Analyst • 1990 - 1991 

• Worked on lending team to serve clients in bank's North American Corporate Division 
• Reviewed, analyzed and assisted with the approval of over $250 million in new loans and other credit 

facilities 
• Helped ensure that bank's loans and investments remained safe by analyzing clients operational and 

financial performance each quarter 

Education 

Masters Business Program 
University of Michigan Ross School of Business, Ann Arbor, Ml 1997 - 1999 

Juris Doctorate 
University of Detroit-Mercy Law School, Detroit, Ml 1994 

Bachelor of Arts, Finance 
Morehouse College, Atlanta, GA 1990 



TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Finance 

HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION 
47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Phone: (248) 758-3293 I Fax: (248) 758-3197 

Honorable City Council President William and City Council Members 

Mayor Deirdre Watennan 

Anthony Chubb, City Attorney; and Kiearha Davidson, Human Resources Manager 

September 10, 2020 

Resolution to Confirm Mayor Waterman's Appointment of Mr. Darin Carrington, 
to the position of Finance Director. 

In accordance with Alticle 4.106 of the City Chatter as sh.own below, it is my honor and privilege to 
appoint Mr. Darin Cani.ngton to the position of Finance Director. A copy of the redacted resume is 
attached for your infonnation. 

4.106 Appointment of Directors; Failure to Act on Appointments: 

Except as otherwise required by law or this chatter, the Mayor shall 
appoint for each depattment of the executive branch a director who 
serves at the pleasure of the Mayor as head of the depaitment. Each 
appointment is subject to approval by the council. 

If a mayoral appointment is not disapproved by the Council within 
30 days, the appointment is effective. 

Based on his eight years of service in municipal finance, preceded by over twenty years of work 
experience in the private sector serving in finance and law, Mr. Carrington's experience and education 
in law and business will be an asset to the City of Pontiac. 

Pending no objection, the following resolution is recommended: Whereas, in accordance with Article 
IV - Executive Branch; Section 4. 106 of the City Chatter, the Mayor is responsible for the appointment 
of a director for each department who serves at the pleasure of the Mayor. Now therefore, it is resolved 
that Mr. Darin S. Canington be appointed to the position of Finance Director. 

KKD 

Attachment 





TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

MEMORANDUM 

Council President Williams, Members of CityCouncil 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman and Matthew Gibb, Special Legal Counsel for Economic 
Development 

September 10, 2020 
For City Council Agenda of 9/15/2020 

Special Presentation 
Report Following Real Estate Subcommittee - Proposed Public Private 
Partnerships - Phoenix Center 

BACKGROUND 

The Real Estate Subcommittee of the Pontiac City Council met on September 9, 2020 wherein 
the committee heard and discussed several presentations from third parties interested in joining 
the City of Pontiac in a public private partnership to invest in the Phoenix Center and potentially 
resolve the commitments of the City contained within the November 2018 Settlement 
Agreement. 

SUMMARY REPORT 

The committee asked the administration to coordinate information from the presentations, along 
with information provided from the administration regarding other third party proposals, and 
bring to Council at its September 15th meeting a summary of the opportunities with sufficient 
detail that the Council could provide any acceptance, rejection or direction regarding each 
proposal. 

To allow for confidentiality and nondisclosure while any of the proposals are being negotiated or 
completed, a summary of the information will be provided separately from this memorandum 
and included within the Councils agenda packet. As a general summary the proposals included, 
but were not limited to the following: 

1. Use of Allocated fund balance. Each presentation included some aspect of participation 
by the City in the capital needed to complete the transactions. This would involve 
authorizing the use of general fund balance at a future time. 

2. Additional Commitments. Each presentation has some aspect of additional 
consideration, including zoning approvals, purchase of additional property, supplemental 
capital for future improvements, and incentives. 

3. Varied Approach to the Phoenix Center Use. The proposals varied in their approach to 
what becomes of the phoenix center. Some indicated that the center would be 
demolished in favor of a new development, others want to adapt the center to alternate 



uses. 

ANTICIPATED AGENDA DISCUSSION 

A summary of each proposal will be presented and, to the extent possible based on the 
provided information, details will be assessed, including; 

1. What is the actual cost to the City? 
2. What is the long-term financial impact? 
3. What additional obligations are in the proposals, or will arise if accepted? 
4. What are the obstacles? 

There will be additional information provided that includes alternate remedies and impacts, 
including; 

1. What is a possible response to the offer of Ottawa Towers? 
2. What is the likely impact if a deal cannot be completed? 
3. What affect can a judgment have on the City? 



POSSIBLE SCENARIOS POST NOVEMBER 1 

a. A general damage award in the amount of the agreed 
upon improvements, thereby placing the Plaintiff in a 
position to complete the work itself. This exposure would 
result in a money damage award in the amount of the 
AUCH estimates, plus costs and attorney fees. 

b. A supplemental award for additional lost rents and use. 

c. Whether the ownership of the garage should transfer to 
the Plaintiff. 

d. Other additional relief including injunctions, demand for 
completion, and attorney fees. 

Possible Damages 

Cost to complete 

$16.8 million 

Possible Damages 

Lost Market Share 

$3.2million 

Possible Damages 

Attorney fees 

$????? 



1. Council President Williams Proffered Concept (Offer to buy Ottawa) 

At its meeting of August 18, 2020 Council President Williams read into the record an offer from the owners of the 
Ottawa Towers to purchase five properties presently owned by them in the City, financing and other relief that would 
settle the City's obligations and result in a satisfaction of the Settlement Agreement. A copy of that offer is attached , 
as well as, a summary calculation as to the total cost to the City. A summary of the offer is as follows: 

a. The City would purchase five properties: 
i. 51111 Woodward 
ii. 31 Judson 
iii. Three Schools 

a. Financing of Debt 
i. Down Payment 
ii. Financing (3 years @ 7-8%) 

a. Management Debt 
b. Settlement Agreement Balance 

$12,700,000.00 
$ 6,378,373.00 
$ 921,627.00 

$10,000,000.00 
$ 2,454,015.00 

$ 1,290,600.00 
$ 2,100,000.00 

The total cost to the City to accept this offer is 

Additional anticipated costs to the City (see attached) 

$20,000,000.00 

$25,844,615.00 

$1,190,537.00 (annually) 



Operating expenses Operating expenses 
Propeny mgmt 4% 69,060 4% 69,060 Property mgmt 4% 116,150 
Office expense 242 242 Office expense 242 
Phone & internet service 2,341 2,341 Phone & internet service 2,341 

Repairs & maintenance Repairs & maintenance 

General 14,671 14,671 General 14,671 
HVAC 22,352 22,352 HVAC 22,352 

Plumbing 5,165 5,165 Plumbing 5,165 

Elevators 37,422 37,422 Elevators 37,422 

Elecuical 1,612 81,222 1,612 81,222 Electrical 1,612 81,222 

Gas, diesel, parking & tolls 2,320 2,320 Gas, diesel, parking & tolls 2,320 

Janatorial 126,689 126,689 Janatorial 126,689 
Landcape maintenance & snow removal 18,389 

Landcape maintenance & snow removal 18,389 18,389 Pest control 1,374 
Pest control 1,374 1,374 Security 52,947 
Security 52,947 52,947 Fire sprinkler system & monitoring 12,007 
Fire s111inkler system & monitoring 12,007 12,007 Emergency gen er a tors 6,293 
Emergency generators 6,293 6,293 Electricity 110,871 
Electricity 110,871 110,871 Natural gas 38,411 
Natural gas 38,411 38,411 Water & sewer 16,866 
Water & sewer 16,866 16,866 Garbage 4,563 
Garbage 4,563 4,563 Advertising & 111omotion 1,611 

Advertising & promotion 1,611 1,611 Licenses, fees & bonds 
Miscellaneous expense 25 25 Miscellaneous expense 25 

Insurance 16,006 16,006 Insurance 16,006 

Property taxes 51,604 Property taxes 

Total 011er ating ex11enses 612,841 561,237 Total operating expenses 608,327 



1. Authorize the Mayors office to respond to the offer proffered through the 
Council President, by establishing a potential public private partnership: 

a. To be discussed in more detail in closed session, but would include 
an acceptance of terms, and a PPP with investors owning the 
towers and the City committing to a long term capital contribution. 

2. The other option is to authorize a pre-scaled offer for third parties to 
invest, meaning, a pre-approved offer that could be placed within a PPP to 
attract investors that need a commitment from the city PRIOR to engaging 
in ANY substantive discussions. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

RFP RESPONSE 

ARCTARIS OPPORTUNITY ZONE INTIATIVE 

OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Matthew A. Gibb 

mgibb@pontiac.mi.us 
(248) 464-0307 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Pontiac is one of the Midwest's most dynamic opportunities. Its location and 
connection to talent have bolstered a rapidly growing investment portfolio that has seen 
Amazon, United Shore, Williams International and others capture long term revenue 
and growth through strategic development. As the City continues to cl imb out of the 
recession of the last decade, it continues to real ize improved housing and job 
opportunit ies, and has built a much-improved credit rating and solidly performing 
budget. The heart of the City's Downtown fa lls within a dynamic Opportunity Zone 
where a cross section of eligible and qualified projects is available to purchase, develop 
and own. 

Despite this positive outlook, the City continues to struggle to raise its core 
demographics, including household incomes, market rate housing and rate of 
employment. As the City offers excellent upside value to property and business 
investment, it is also burdened by legacy obligations brought on by its former 
emergency management. These challenges, however, have given rise to a targeted 
economic development opportunity that provides support to the City's low and 
moderate income community and much needed budgetary relief for the City. 

This proposal will offer an opportunity for Arctaris to generate revenue for its investors 
while meeting a substantial economic development need within the community. A public 
private partnership that uses Arctaris OZ fund sources to acquire the Ottawa Towers, 
resolve all pending settlement obligations of the City, and restore the vibrancy and 
revenue generation of the Phoenix Center. 

A. ORGANIZATIONAL INFORMATION 

This proposal is submitted by: 

This project will be coordinated by: 

Other persons involved: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, MI 48342 

OFFICE OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Matthew Gibb, Special Legal Counsel 
mgibb@pontiac. mi. us 
(248) 464-0307 

Mayor Dierdre Waterman 
Dan Ringo, Director DPW 
Vince Deleonardis, President AUCH 
Dave DiCuccio, President IDS 



B. REGIONAL OZ OVERVIEW AND FOCUS AREAS 

Pontiac, in the center of Oakland County, is home to and within minutes of more 
than 50% of the global Fortune 500. General Motors continues to be an anchor 
of its economy, but recent investments have seen Amazon build more than one 
million square feet of distribution space with Williams International planning to 
match that investment with its own million plus square foot manufacturing 
facility, adding on to its already significant presence. 

United Shore is building the largest pedestrian bridge in Michigan to unify its two 
Pontiac locations, and is hiring at a rate of 150 new employees per week. 
Ultimate Soccer, the regions largest sports venue added the Detroit Medical 
Center as a partner and expanded by more than 20%. Companies are choosing 
Pontiac, and the job base is growing. 

I
V\ 
0 
l: 

Health Care & Social Assistance 

Accommodation & Food Services 

Manufacturing 

Retail Trade 

Adm1nistrat1ve & Support & 

0 500 1k 1.5k 2k 2.5k 3k 3.5k 4k 4.5k 

PEOPLE IN WORKFORCE 

KEY EMPLOYERS 
Mcclaren Health Care 
St. Joseph Mercy Health 
FANUC Robotics 
Posco Daewoo 
Gonzalez Production 
Irvin Automotive 
General Motors 
United Shore 
FM Sylvan 

There are few areas in the Midwest that have seen dramatic increases in 
household income and market value. Pontiac continues to break the post
recession trends. 

Estimated median household income in 2017: $39,055 (it was $31,207 in 2000) 

Pontiac: - _______ __ __ - $39,055 

Ml : ___ $54,909 

Estimated median house or condo value in 2017: $102,963 (it was $73,400 in 2000) 

Pontiac: - _-___ __ __ _ $102,963 
Ml: ___ $155,700 



Pontiac has long established relationships with Oakland University, Baker College, 
Oakland Community College and the strong regional K-12 districts. The City is 
home to leading non-profits, including Lighthouse, Grace Centers of Hope and 
United Way. 

The history of Pontiac reveals a rich culture, bolstered by decades of hard work 
in manufacturing and technology. The focus for the future, and for this proposal 
is summed up within the Congress for New Urbanism Study, 

"So what is the challenge with Pontiac? The 
urban fabric is here, the pioneering 
entrepreneurs are here, the market demand is 
here. What is missing is a coherent, continuous, 
pedestrian-friendly framework for businesses, 
shops, restaurants and citizens to flourish. When 
its leaders, residents, and property owners 
understand that the physical environment is 
crucial for its renaissance, and when these 
pieces are woven together, Downtown Pontiac 
will become a thriving community." 

VISION FOR REVITALIZED 
AND TRANSIT-READY 
DOWNTOWN PONTIAC 

The CNU Study, along with the Pontiac Moving Forward Plan have laid the bench 
marks for several key new investments; the Strand Theater, Lafayette Lofts, Allie 
Cat Cafe, the Pontiac Little Arts Theater, and more. 

PRIORITY FOCUS AREA: THE PHOENIX CENTER 

Site Context: Large underutilized 
parking garage and public plaza 
closing off the southern end of 
Saginaw 

Development Proposals: Make 
use of the Center as a civic asset. In 
time, demolish sections, reconnect 
Saginaw and infill with mixed uses 

Development Approach: Public/ 
Private venture 

Please see CNU Study Attached 

Short-term 
• Maintain upkeep of the building 

and study its structure 

• Place civic and recreational 
facilities on the roof 

• Improve access with temporary 
steps and linear walkway 

Activate frontages and introduce 
liner structures 

Long-term 
• In stages remove sections of the 

Center and reinstate urban grid 
with infill buildings 

• Reconnect Sagniaw as an 
unobstructed North-South Main 
Street 

• Review the parking requirements 
for Downtown 



C. INVESTABLE PROJECT AREAS & PAST INVOVLEMENT WITH SIMILAR 
PROJECTS 

Pon iac ... 4 Oppor unit Zones 

Distribution/Lo1ist1c 
Corridor & NE 
Neighborhood 
District 

~ I 
Munldpal Dlartct I 
Cenlrat ... ~ 

AMAZON S2~0M , 1 S.JC, 
FMPLOYEES 

UNITED SHORE 1 1M SF • 

~ 000• fMPl OYffS 

WII L IAMS INTL 1M SF • 

100• [MPLOYffS 

PITNFY flOWFS cO<i• 

r,,1P1 OYF F S 

F[DEX :"St'• EMPLOYEES 

BLOOMFIFLO PARK S;00M 

REDEVELOPMENT 

MCl ARFN KARMANOS 

CANCER CENTER S14M 

WODA COOPr R SJOM 



Additonal options 

48 W Huron 

• Mixed use office warehouse 

• Approx 60,000 sq.ft. in total 

• $2.2MM purchase 

• $1,000,000.00 renovation budget. 

• Approx 3.5 acres of land . 

Eastern Gateway edeve op en 
uron & Woodward Ave 

• 1.5 Miles from Amazon 's New Development 

• 8 Acres in the Opportunity Zone 

• 3 Hard Corners of Woodward & M-59 
Frontage 

• 49,400 SF Former YMCA Building 

D. COMMUNITY IMPACT GOALS 

Pontiac completed a comprehensive econmic recovery plan, atached hereto, that set 
forth the goals the City has for the impact of this sought after investment. The plan's 
strategies link the where and what we want to grow through a set of achievable 



projects that can make a significant impact and build tremendous momentum towards 
the overall economic recovery effort of Pontiac. Based on research and input from the 
Plan's Advisors and Steering Committee, the following set of six strategies rose to the 
surface as the most tactical starting point for Pontiac's economic recovery effort. It is 
expected that these projects will stimulate other projects. 

The Plan Strategies are listed below: 

1. Strengthen Neighborhood and Advocacy Groups 

2. Develop a Marketing Plan 

3. Grow Business Support Services 

4. Expand Business Entrepreneurial + Incubator Services 

5. Establish an Arts Collaborative 

6. Increase Access to Job Skills Training Programs 

E. PROGRAM SIZE AND MATCHING CAPITAL SOURCES 

There are several OZ opportunities for the fund to consider, but the City is prioritizing 
an investment in the Phoenix Center. There is presently a settlement agreement that 
was approved by the City in October 2018 that remains pending against the budget and 
commitment of the City. This agreement requires work to be performed on the Phoenix 
Center for the benefit of the Ottawa Towers, and that work is currently estimated at 
$16.8 million. The owners of the Ottawa Towers desire to be bought out of its position. 

There is an oportuninty to invest in the OZ Area consisting of the Phoenix center and 
Towers. The investment would be in excess of $25 million, and would allow an 
investment to obtain long term ownership of the towers, with the further agreement of 
the City to convey an interest in the 2600 space parking garage. 

MATCHING CAPITAL: The City has presently allocated $7,000,000.00 
towards its commitment to resolve the Phoenix Center 
settlement and/ or enter a public private partnership 
to create a joint investment. 



INVESTMENT CONCEPT: 

PHOENIX SHARED USE: 

Arctaris investment would be used to acquire the 
interest in the following property: 

51111 Woodward 

31 Judson 

600 Motor St (Jefferson School) 

25 S Sanford St (Perdue School) 

31 N Astor ( longfellow School) 

The properties have a toal acquisition cost of 
$20,000,000.00. The City would commit its allocated 
general fund reserve in the amount of $5,000,000.00. 

The Arctaris investment would also result in 
ownership of the garage, provded the City woud 
retian a perpetual license to maintain and use the 
amphitheater for public benefit. 

The City would further commit to the use of TIF, 
Corrdior Improvement, application to the Michigan 
Strategic Fund, and its own budget to fund future 
improvements. 

Prior project experience. The City is well versed in completing incentive and 
partnered investments in the City. They have approved Rennisaicne Zones, Industrial 
Development Districts, applied obsolete property rehabilitation act credits, and more. Of 
sginifance for the Funds consideration is the project known as Village at Bloomfield. 

The City creatively crafted a borwnfield TIF such that it could take advanatage of look 
back expenses from the prior failed devleopment. This tactic, though complex, was 
used by the city to generate an aditional $14 million of unreimbursed capital into the 
noew plan and allosed Redico to complete site work and attract Henry Ford Health, 
Menards, Aldi and a variety of other beneficial retailers. The prjoect also brought 
several hundred units of market rate housing. 



F. ATTACHMENTS 

Attached please find the following suppoting documents: 

1. Pontiac Moving Forward - Plan for Economic Recovery 
2. Congress for New Urbanism - Vision for Revitalized and Transit Ready Downtown 
3. Memorandum to Council - Attachment of Offer 





LUM BERG FREEMAN GLEESON 
HICKS & KHALIL PLLC 
33 Bloomfield Hills Parkway, Suite I 00 

Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304 
Telephone: (248) 724-3700 

Fax: (248) 724-370 I 
www. LFGLuwFinn.L:0111 

City of Pontiac Council 
September 15, 2020 

H. William Freeman, Esq. 
\\ lr<:cmanra LFGLawFinn.com 

Direct: (248) 724-3 706 

This firm represents Urban Development of Michigan LLC, a Michigan limited liability company 
("UDM"), which is proposing to purchase the Ottawa Towers. The following is a list of 
requirements which will be necessary for UDM to pursue the mutual objectives for the benefit of 
the City of Pontiac ("City"): 

1. The City will transfer all legal rights of the Phoenix Center to UDM prior or concurrent 
with to the closing of the Ottawa Towers Deal; and 

2. The City will transfer funds in the amount of Seven Million Seven Hundred Thousand and 
00/100 Dollars ($7,700,000.00) to UDM prior to or concurrent with the closing of the 
Ottawa Towers Deal; and 

3. The current budget for the Ottawa Towers for maintenance and cleanup shall continue in 
the amount of $700,000.00 per year for 8 years; and 

Upon approval of these preliminary requirements, the City and UDM shall enter into negotiations 
with respect to these items and other revitalization projects to create jobs and attract businesses 
and people to the City, al to generate additional taxes. This public-private partnership will benefit 
the City currently and well into the future. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
LUMBERG FREEMAN GLEESON 

HICKS & KHALIL PLLC 

~~ 
H. William Freeman 





GARLAND s. DOYLE, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 
FOIA Coordinator 

SHEILA GRANDISON 
Deputy City Clerk 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FR: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

DA: September 11, 2020 

RE: Center for Tech and Civic Life (CTCL) Grant 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

4 7 450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Phone: (248) 758-3200 

Fax: (248) 758-3160 

On September 8, 2020, I announced that the Office of the City Clerk on behalf of the City 
of Pontiac had been awarded a $405,564.00 grant from the Center for Tech and Civic Life 
(CTCL), a nationally-recognized, nonpartisan 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization to support the 
Pontiac Safe Voting Plan 2020. 

The grand period is from June 15 - December 31, 2020. I have attached a copy of the 
grant award and our Pontiac Safe Voting Plan 2020. 

Based upon the above attached information, it is the recommendation of the Office of the 
City Clerk that the Council approve the following resolution to accept the grant. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

The Center for Tech and Civic Life (CTCL) has award a $405,564.00 to 
support the Pontiac Safe Voting Plan 2020; and 

the grant period is from June 15 - December 31, 2020; and 

the Interim City Clerk will serve as the grant administrator 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Pontiac City Council approves the acceptance of 
the grant and authorizes the Mayor to sign the grant agreement on behalf of the City of Pontiac. 



August 28, 2020 

City of Pontiac 

Office of the City Clerk 

47450 Woodward Ave. 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

To whom it may concern: 

I am pleased to inform you that the Center for Tech and Civic Life ("CTCL") has decided to award you a 

grant to support the work of the City of Pontiac. 

The following is a description of the grant: 

AMOUNT OF GRANT: Four-hundred five-thousand, five-hundred sixty-four (USO $405,564). 

PURPOSE: The grant funds must be used exclusively for the public purpose of 

planning and operationalizing safe and secure election administration in 

the City of Pontiac in accordance with the attached Pontiac Safe Voting 

Plan 2020 

Before we transmit these funds, we ask that you sign this agreement promising to use the grant funds in 

compliance with United States tax laws. Specifically, by signing this letter you agree to the following: 

1. The City of Pontiac is a local government unit or political subdivision in the meaning of 
26 USC 170(c)(l). 

2. This grant shall be used only for the public purpose described above, and for no other 

purposes. 

3. The City of Pontiac shall not use any part of this grant to give a grant to another 
organization unless CTCL agrees to the specific grant in writing. 



4. The City of Pontiac has produced a plan for safe and secure election administration in 
2020, including an assessment of election administration needs, budget estimates for 
such assessment, and an assessment of the impact of the plan on voters. This plan is 
attached to this agreement. The City shall expend the amount of this grant for purposes 
contained in this plan by December 31, 2020. 

5. The City of Pontiac shall produce a report documenting how this grant has been 
expended in support of the activities described in paragraph 4. This report shall be 
written and sent to CTCL by January 31, 2021 or in any other format approved by CTCL. 

6. The City of Pontiac shall not reduce the budget of the City Clerk of Pontiac ("the Clerk") 
or fail to appropriate or provide previously budgeted funds to the Clerk for the term of 
this grant. Any amount reduced or not provided in contravention of this paragraph shall 
be repaid to CTCL up to the total amount of this grant. 

7. CTCL may discontinue, modify, withhold part of, or ask for the return all or part of the 
grant funds if it determines, in its sole judgment, that (a) any of the above conditions 
have not been met or (b) it must do so to comply with applicable laws or regulations. 

8. The grant project period of June 15, 2020 through December 31, 2020 represents the 
dates between which covered costs may be applied to the grant. 

Your acceptance of these agreements should be indicated below. Please have an authorized 

representative of The City of Pontiac sign below, and return a scanned copy of this letter to us by email 

at grants@techandciviclife.org 

On behalf of CTCL, I extend my best wishes in your work. 

Sincerely, 

Tiana Epps Johnson 

Executive Director 

Center for Tech and Civic Life 

CENTER FOR TECH & CIVIC LIFE 

HELLO@TECHANDCIVICLIFE.ORG 

PAGE 2 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

A Michigan Municipal Corporation 

By: _________ _ 

Title: __________ _ 

Date: _________ _ 

CENTER FOR TECH & CIVIC LIFE 

HELLO@TECHANDCIVICLIFE.ORG 

PAGE 3 



City of Pontiac 

Safe Voting Plan Application 

To Center for Technology and Civic Life 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman and Interim City Clerk Garland Doyle are working collaboratively on the 

November 2020 election to: reduce the risk of exposure to coronavirus for our residents as well as our 

election staff and poll workers; identify best practices for safe and healthy voting; innovate to efficiently 

and effectively educate our residents about how to exercise their right to vote during this time of 

COVID-19; be intentional and strategic in helping historically disenfranchised residents and 

communities safely vote during unprecedented times; and, above all, ensure the right to healthy voting 

in our dense and diverse communities. Interim City Clerk Garland Doyle will serve as the Grant 

Administrator. 

2020 Election Administration Climate 

Michigan municipalities are faced with conducting two expensive elections in November. First, Michigan 

election law requires every precinct to be open on election day for in-person voting regardless of the 

number of voters who cast ballots by mail. Second, the expected skyrocketing volume of mail ballots 

driven by the COVID-19 pandemic will incur costs for staffing and equipment that will rival typical 

election day expenses. 

Michigan election officials typically conduct presidential elections with 25 - 30% of the voters casting 

ballots by mail and 70- 75% casting them in-person on election day. It now appears that mail balloting 

may account for 65 - 70% of the turnout. This trend is breaking municipal election budgets beginning 

with the higher-than-expected mail turnout in the August Primary that will continue through the 

November General Election. 

Federal CARES ACT funding does not begin to meet the need of cash-strapped municipal election 

budgets. These funds disbursed by the Secretary of State have been used to issue August Primary mail 

ballot applications to all voters and to provide PPE and equipment to election officials. Both Pontiac and 

Michigan's budgets have been hard hit by the resulting economic downturn making additional funding 

of the city's election preparations unlikely. 

There are many challenges to opening polling places in a pandemic and processing a historically high 

volume of mail ballots. The time that remains between now and the November Election provides an 

opportunity to plan for the highest possible voter turnouts in the safest possible ways. 

Supplemental Election Administration Needs for 2020 

Through careful analysis, we have a concluded that crucial, supplemental programs will assist Pontiac 

voters in fully participating in the presidential election. We are requesting a $405,564 grant to meet 

Pontiac's election administration needs for the remainder of this year as specified in the four strategic 

recommendations. With the election fast approaching, we are committed to using the grant funds 

without any unnecessary administrative delays so that they may be effectively applied to these 

recommendations. 

1 



Recommendation I: Encourage and Increase Absentee Voting (By Mail and Early, In-Person) 

1. Provide assistance to help voters safely request absentee ballots. 
2. Expand in-person early voting opportunities. 
3. Utilize secure drop-boxes to facilitate return of absentee ballots. 
4. Deploy additional technology to expedite and improve accuracy of mail ballot process 

Recommendation II: Ensure Safe Election Day Voting 

Recommendation Ill: Dramatically Expand Strategic Voter Education & Outreach Efforts 

Recommendation IV: Launch Poll Worker Recruitment & Training. 

Recommendation I: Encourage and Increase Absentee Voting (By Mail and Early, 

In-Person) 

Overview of Mail Voting in Michigan 

In 2018 Michigan voters amended the state constitution to provide a series of voting rights to Michigan 

citizens. Central to the amendment is no reason absentee voting, which is a significant change that 

eliminated the reasons that entitled a voter to vote absentee. Voters must still apply by application to 

receive an absentee ballot and they may request both a primary ballot and a general election ballot with 

a single request, which is commonly referred to as a 'dual' application. Further, the amendment entitles 

citizens who are not registered by the 15th day before the election to register in-person in a clerk's office 

during the 14 days prior to an election and on election day- Michigan now has Election Day 

Registration. 

Under the amendment election officials have authority to add satellite offices to register voters and 

issue absentee ballots. The legislative body of the jurisdiction must approve any satellite office under 

Michigan election law. All satellite offices must be published at least 30 days before an election. 

Historically, absentee voting has been costly as clerks must send applications to voters, receive and 

verify the completed applications, issue and mail absentee ballots, receive voted ballots and verify the 

voters' signatures, and finally tabulate ballots beginning on election day. Each of these processes must 

still be done under mail balloting, requiring a significant number of staff and, as the volume increases, 

more sophisticated equipment to efficiently process the large amount of paperwork. 

The back and forth nature of Michigan's mail balloting processes places a heavy burden on voters to 

learn how to apply for a mail ballot, be aware of the election calendar and apply for a ballot early 

enough to receive, vote and return the ballot by election day and understand the delays built into the 

United State Postal Service delivery timelines. 

In the 2016 November Presidential Election, Pontiac received 4,604 mail ballots - 23% of total vote. 

Projections are that between 14,000 and 17,500 mail ballots will be received in November. In fact, 

Pontiac exceeded the 2016 General Election total of mail ballots in the August primary this year. 

2 



To avoid the city clerk's office being inundated with applications to the point of compromising the 

processing of applications and ballots, we require the grant resources to facilitate our proposals outlined 

below. 

Pontiac will assist as many residents as possible with casting ballots before Election Day, serving as the 

great opportunity to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 in our community. We have identified four distinct 

strategies to help voters overcome barriers to successful mail voting. 

1. Provide assistance to voters with mail ballot requests 

The processing of mail ballot applications and ballots requires additional staff. Seven temporary 

employees will be added: three for 9 weeks, three for 10 weeks, and one for 20 weeks at $15 an hour 

for a total cost of $46,200. 

Also, the Clerk's Office will need to hire one temporary employee for 8 weeks to assist with all the post 

election work for a total cost of $4,800. In addition to adding temporary staff, we will need to purchase 

two desktop computers at a cost of $2,000. 

In an effort to encourage absentee voting, we will mail absentee voter applications to all registered 

voters who have not already requested an absentee ballot. We will be mailing to approximately 36,000 

registered voters at a cost of $20,000. 

The Clerk's Office is establishing the Pontiac City Clerk Service Team. Team members will be deputized 

so they can pick up ballots from the elderly or residents who are unable to make it to a dropbox. The 

Service Team will also be responsible for retrieving ballots from the dropboxes. They will be available to 

deliver ballots to voters if necessary as well. The cost of the Service Team is 10,000. 

Subtotal: $83,000 

2. Expand in-person early mail voting opportunities 

The City Clerk's Office will extend its hours for voters to register to vote, apply for mail ballots and 

deliver voted ballots from 8:30 a.m. to 8 p.m. Monday through Thursday starting October 5th-30th
• 

Further, the office will be open the last two weekends before the November election. Saturday, October 

24th 9am-1pm, Sunday, October 25 th 10:30am-2:30pm, Saturday, October 31st 9am-4pm and Sunday 

November 1st 9am-4pm. Additional staff cost of $1,164. 

Subtotal: $1,164 

3 



3. Utilize secure drop-boxes to facilitate return of absentee 

Pontiac voters, like those across Michigan, will be encouraged to return their mail ballots in-person 

rather than using USPS, particularly in the last two weeks before the election. USPS is going to be 

stressed with increased election related mail, as evidenced by recent announcements that some service 

deterioration is going to occur. Drop boxes, especially drive through boxes, allow voters to easily drop 

off their voted ballots regardless of where they happen to be in the city. 

A drop box costs $6,000 with security cameras and installation costs. The drop boxes would cost: 7 

boxes plus installation @$6,000 per box= $42,000. In addition, two bollards per box at $400 per bollard 

costs $4,800. 

Subtotal: $46,800 

4. Deploy additional technology to expedite and improve accuracy of mail ballot process 

The city clerk seeks to substantially upgrade its website pontiaccityclerk.com to improve security to 
allow for interactive service that allow voters to apply to become a precinct inspector, receive 
supplemental training and take tests. The clerk has a Facebook page, twitter account, lnstagram account 
and YouTube account. This will all be incorporated into the website as well as upgrades for video and 
live streaming. The cost is $50,000. 

To make the website and other communication accounts work in a coordinated manner, a social media 
consultant is necessary at a cost of $5,000. 

Subtotal: $55,000 

Recommendation II: Ensure Safe Election Day Voting 

Election day workers who administer elections in the precincts are often referred to as the frontline or 

face of democracy. These workers are asked to work a very long day for a small stipend. They are often 

referred to as volunteers. This year they face the hazard of COVID-19 as they serve hundreds of voters 

throughout the day. The average age of our poll workers is in the late 60s or early 70s, an age group 

considered at high risk to the virus. Pontiac is having similar experience as communities across the 

nation of large numbers of our older workers declining to work this election year. And yet the City of 

Pontiac is committed to opening the same polling sites on election day that the city has opened in 

recent years. To meet that commitment, the city must enhance its recruitment and retention strategy, 

including by seeking workers who have not served as poll workers in the past by offering a financial 

incentive. 

There are 146 poll workers and employees assisting at the polling places. An incentive of $100 is 

recommended for a cost of $14,600. 

4 



To supplement the COVID-19 supplies provided by the Secretary of State in November, the city will need 

additional materials, supplies and PPE to maintain safe voting for cost of $9,000. 

It is important to avoid creating congestion and long lines. By adding scanners and additional electronic 

poll books, precinct inspectors will process more voters in a shorter amount of time. 30 scanners cost 

$5,400, five laptops cost $3,000 and five printers cost 1,500 for a total of $9,900. 

With Same Day Registration and Election Day Registration being implemented for the first time in a 

presidential election, the clerk is asking for signage for social distancing in the office at $500. 

Additional election day material is requested: tables and chairs to distance workers, hand scanners to 

read barcodes on voters' ID, Verbatim Store N Go flash drives for a total of $2,000. 

Subtotal: $36,000 

Recommendation Ill: Dramatically Expand Strategic Voter Education & Outreach 

Efforts. 

As noted above, the voters play a critical role to a successfully administered election in November. By 

applying early for mail ballots, voters will distribute the Clerk's Office Elections Division workload across 

September and October. Normally, voters wait until early to mid-October to apply for a mail ballot, 

which jams up the process as applications flood the Clerk's Office Elections Division, resulting in longer 

turnaround times before ballots are issued. To avoid this, voters will be encouraged through a variety of 

outreach to apply early and vote early. 

Voters also must be informed to avoid errors such as forgetting to sign applications and return ballot 

envelopes and to affix their signatures as they appear on their driver license or state ID. Many people 

today sign credit card receipts with an informal signature that does not match their formal signature 

used on official documents. These errors will invalidate ballots. Clerk's Office Elections Division staff will 

attempt to contact voters making these errors; however, time is usually in short supply. Designing, 

printing and mailing postcard cost $8,600. 

The City Clerk plans include three citywide voter education and outreach initiatives that will address the 

needs of Pontiac voters. "Pontiac Votes Community Challenge" resulted from a program Secretary of 

State's office launch to identify and focus on low performing voting precincts across the state. Pontiac 

has five precincts in this program and is launching a citywide challenge to increase turnout in each 

precinct. The cost is $5,000. 

"Absentee Voting Days" are planned for the end of the first week of October and at the end of the third 

week of October. Pontiac experience 25% of the ballots being returned on election day in the August 

Primary. This program is intended to focus voters' attention on returning their ballots ahead of election 

day. Pontiac is participating in Oakland County Clerk's program to count mail ballot for the city. 

However, the city must count any ballots received on election day in the precincts. This program will 

cost $5,000. 

5 



Pontiac is a diverse community than includes sizeable Hispanic and Hmong populations that vote in 

numbers below their proportion of the registered voters. A program is being developed to encourage 

turnout by a variety groups, including Hispanics, Hmong and African Americans. The cost is $45,000. 

The City Clerk's Advisory Board seeks to conduct a media campaign to encourage voter participation 

under a program "Vote: Pontiac Matters! Campaign". The campaign will consist of media ads, mini

billboards and yard signs which is estimated at $45,000. Outreach will include a citywide mailing of the 

newsletter with information on registering to vote, requesting a mail ballot and returning ballots to drop 

boxes of the clerk's office at a cost of $20,000. The campaign will establish partnerships with 7 

community partner organizations. There will be one community partner organization for each of the 7 

voting districts in Pontiac. The community partner organization will work with the Clerk's Office to 

promote the campaign and increase voter registration and turnout in the district that they have been 

assigned too. Each community partner organization will receive $5,000, for a cost of $35,000 

(7x$5,000). 

Subtotal $163,600 

Recommendation IV: Launch Poll Worker Recruitment & Training 

Recruiting inspectors is a continuing challenge. An aggressive campaign is necessary with businesses, 

religious communities and other groups in Pontiac to recruit their employees to administer election on 

election day both in the precincts and the counting boards. An 'All Hands On Deck' call is necessary to 

meet the minimum requirements to administer the November election. This may require outreach by 

officials beyond the city clerk. The clerks has planned a marketing campaign to recruit additional poll 

workers at $5,000. 

An additional trainer is needed to assist the Election Administrator with the standard 2.5 hours of 

training and additional training segments, such as 'Dos and Don'ts of a Poll Worker'. Once poll workers 

are recruited, it is critical to their retention that they are efficiently managed and receive regular 

communications about their assignment, election administration and what to expect on election day. 

Staying connected with all poll workers on a regular basis will keep them engaged in the election 

process. They may be more likely to communicate with the Clerk's Office Elections Division any reticence 

about working on election day. This may require additional project managers and improved technology 

to remain in contact with poll workers. Maintaining communication and additional training will be done 

by new trainer at $3,500. 

The clerk is planning supplemental on line training and a follow-up test for $11,500. 

Subtotal $20,000 

TOTAL REQUESTED RESOURCES: $405,564. 

6 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL :MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 

FROM: Linnette Phillips, Director, Economic Development 

THROUGH: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

DATE: September 8, 2020 

RE: Resolution for the City Council to Adopt the Oakland County Brownfield 
Consortium Agreement between Oakland County and the City of Pontiac 

Attached to this memorandum is the 2020 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium 
Agreement Between Oakland County and the City of Pontiac. Oakland County formed a 
coalition to apply for and Environmental Protect Agency Consortium, and the agency 
applied for the EPA 2013 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant. Because the 
Consortium is not a legal entity and because only one member of the consortium could 
submit the grant application and be the grant recipient, the County submitted the 2020 
Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant on behalf of the members of the Consortium, of 
which the City of Pontiac is a member. 

The County was awarded a $600,000 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant to be used 
by the Consortium. The 2020 Guidelines for Brownfield Assessment Grants require that 
the Consortium members execute an agreement documenting the site selections process, 
distribution of funds and the mechanism for implementing the work to be performed with 
grant funds. 

RESOLUTION ON FOLLOWING PAGE 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD 
CORSORTUIM AGREEMENT BETWEEN OAKLAND COUNTY AND THE CITY 

0FPONTfA-C 

As such, the resolution below is submitted for your consideration: 

Whereas, the 2020 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium Agreement is entered into 
between the County of Oakland and the City of Pontiac. 

Whereas, the County and formed a coalition to apply for an Environmental Protect Agency 
(EPA) 2009 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant on behalf of the City of Pontiac along 
with other cities in Oakland County ( Farmington Hilfs, Ferndale, Hazel Park, Madison 
Heights and Southfield). 

Whereas, the Consortium which is not a legal entity and because only one member of the 
consortium could submit the grant application and be the grant recipient , the County 
entered into a Cooperative Agreement, Number BF-00E02004. 

Whereas, the County was awarded a $600, 000 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant to 
be used by the Consortium, 

Whereas, the 2020 Guidelines for the Brownfield Assessment Grant requires that the 
Consortium members execute an agreement documenting the site selection process, 
distribution of funds and the mechanisms for implementing the work to be performed with 
grant funds. 

Now Therefore be it Resolved, that the City Council approves the 2020 Oakland County 
Brownfield Consortium Agreement Between Oakland County and the City of Pontiac. 

Attachment: 
2020 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium Agreement 



2020 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

The 2020 Oakland County Brownfield Consortium Agreement ("the Agreement") is entered into 
between the County of Oakland, a Constitutional and Municipal Corporation, 1200 North Telegraph, 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341 ("County"), and the City of Pontiac, Pontiac, Michigan. 47450 Woodward 
Avenue,-a-MichigarrMunicipat---eorp-oration--(\LMunicipaiity''}---In--thi~--Agreemelllthe--C01rn:tyarrd--th-e 
Municipality may also be referred to individually as "Party" or jointly as "Parties". 

PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT. The County and the cities of Farmington Hills, Ferndale, Hazel Park, 
Madison Heights, and Pontiac formed a coalition to apply for an the Environmental· Protect Agency 
("EPA") 2009 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant. Subsequently, the City of Southfield joined the 
Consortium, and the Consortium applied for the EPA 2013 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant. The 
consortium now consisting of the County and the cities of Farmington Hills, Ferndale, Hazel Park, 
Madison Heights, Southfield, and Pontiac (collectively known as the "Oakland County Brownfield 
Consortium") applied for the EPA 2020 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant. Because the 
Consortium is not a legal entity and because only one member of the Conso1iium could submit the grant 
application and be the grant recipient, the County submitted the 2020 Brownfield Coalition Assessment 
Grant on behalf of the members of the Consortium. Brownfield Assessment grants provide funding for 
developing inventories of brownfields, prioritizing sites, conducting community involvement activities, 
and conducting site assessments and clean-up planning related to brownfield sites. 

The County was awarded a six hundred thousand dollar ($600,000.00) Brownfield Coalition Assessment 
Grant to be used by the Consortium. On July 1, 2020 the EPA and the County entered into a 
Cooperative Agreement, Number BF-00E02004, with respect to the six hundred thousand dollar 
($600,000.00) Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant. 

Toe 2020 Guidelines for Brownfield Assessment Grants require that the Consortium members execute 
an agreement documenting the site selection process, distribution of funds and the mechanisms for 
implementing the work to be performed with grant funds. 

Therefore, pursuant to the 2020 Guidelines for Brownfield Assessment Grant and pursuant to the Urban 
Cooperation Act of 1967, 1967 PA 7, MCL 124.501, et seq., the County and the Municipality enter into 
this Agreement for the purpose of delineating the relationship and responsibilities between the County 
and the Municipality regarding the 2020 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant and EPA Cooperative 
Agreement Number BF-00E02004. 

In consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, representations, and assurances in this Agreement, 
the Parties agree to the following: 

Page 1 

2020 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT- FINAL 



------------------····---- -- ----------------

1. DEFINITIONS. The following words and expressions used throughout this Agreement, whether 
used in the singular or plural, within or without quotation marks, or possessive or nonpossessive, 
shall be defined, read, and interpreted as follows: 

1.1. Agreement means the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Exhibits attached hereto, 
and any other mutually agreed to written and executed modification, amendment, or 
addendum. 

1.2. Claim means any and all losses, complaints, demands for relief, damages, lawsuits, causes of 
action, proceedings, judgments, deficiencies, penalties, costs and expenses arising under or 
relating to this agreement, including, but not limited to, reimbursem'ent for reasonable 

--------attorng_y-fogs,-w:i-tBess-•fe€8-,-G0llrt·.(;)&St&,-irrv~stigatien,-litigatiou.-expenses,am0B11t&-p-aiEl-i1+·1-----+ 

settlement, and/or any other amount for which either Party becomes legally and/or 
contractually obligated to pay a third party, whether direct, indirect, or consequential, 
whether based upon any alleged violation of the constitution (federal or state), any statute, 
rule, regulation, or the common law, whether in law or equity, tort, contract, or otherwise, 
and/or whether commenced or threatened. 

1.3. Cooperative Agreement means the agreement awarded to the County by the Environmental 
Protection Agency Number BF ~00E02004 and attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement. 

1.4. County means the County of Oakland, a Constitutional and Municipal Corporation 
including, but not limited to, its Board, any and all of its departments, divisions, elected and 
appointed officials, directors, board members, council members, commissioners, authorities, 
committees, employees, agents, volunteers, and/or any such persons successors. 

1.5. Day means any calendar day beginning at 12:00 a.m. and ending at 11 :59 p.m. 

1.6. Municipality means the City of Pontiac, a Michigan Municipal Corporation including, but 
not limited to, its Council, Board, any and all of its departments, its divisions, elected and 
appointed officials, directors, board members, council members, commissioners, authorities, 
committees, employees, agents, subcontractors, attorneys, volunteers, and/or any such 
persons successors. 

1.7. Oakland County Brownfield Consortium or Consortium means the coalition formed by 
the County and the cities of Farmington Hills, Ferndale, Hazel Park, Madison Heights, 
Pontiac, and Southfield for the purposes of applying for and performance of the 2020 
Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant. 

1.8. Project Manager means the individual designated by the Municipality to participate in the 
Consortium and to be the contact person for this Agreement. 

2. AGREEMENT EXHIBITS. The Exhibits listed below and their properly promulgated 
amendments are incorporated and are part of this Agreement. 

2.1. Exhibit A - Cooperative Agreement, Number BF-00E02004, between the County and the 
EPA 

Page2 

2020 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT - FINAL 



-- ------------

3. COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES. 

3 .1. The County shall act as the fiscal agent/fiduciary for the Consortium relating only to receipt 
and disbursement of grant funds for the 2020 Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant as 
required by the Cooperative Agreement and this Agreement. 

3.2. The County shall be responsible for the management of the Cooperative Agreement. 

3.3. The County shall comply with all terms and conditions of the Cooperative Agreement and all 
applicable statutes and regulations. 

3.4. The County shall follow the 2020 Guidelines for Brownfield Assessment Grants. ________ _ 

3.5. The County shall promptly infonn all members of the Brownfield Consortium of any 
changes to the Cooperative Agreement and how these changes may apply to the 
Municipality. The County and EPA may make changes to the Cooperative Agreement 
without the approval of the Municipality. 

3.6. The County shall provide the Municipality with timely reports regarding the management of 
the Cooperative Agreement. 

3. 7. The County shall have quarterly meetings for the Consortium. 

3.8. The Project Manager and the County shall detennine the brownfield sites for assessment. 

3.9. The County shall select and reta:in the consultant to perfonn the assessment of the brownfield 
site(s) chosen by the Project Manager and the County. The selection and retention of the 
consultant shall :include issuing request for proposals or request for qualifications for a 
consultant and negotiating and executing a contract with the consultant. 

4. MUNICIPALITY RESPONSIBILITIES. 

4.1. The Municipality shall comply with all applicable terms and conditions of the Cooperative 
Agreement and all applicable statutes and regulations. 

4.2. The Municipality shall follow the 2020 Guidelines for Brownfield Assessment Grants. 

4.3. The Municipality shall designate an individual and an alternate to act as a Project Manager. 
This individual shall act as a liaison between the County and Municipality regarding this 
Agreement and shall be responsible for the following: ( 1) meeting with the County to 
determine brownfield sites to be assessed and (2) acting as a liaison with local or community 
organizations involved with the application of the Brownfield Coalition Assessment Grant. 
The names of these individuals shall be conveyed to the individuals listed in Section 17.1. 

5. - FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES. 

5 .1. Any funds awarded to the County under the Cooperative Agreement shall be allocated and 
expended only as provided for and permitted by this Agreement, the Cooperative Agreement, 

Page3 

2020 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT- FINAL 



the 2020 Guidelines for Brownfield Assessment Grants, and any applicable statutes or 
regulations. 

5.2. The Municipality shall be allocated sixty thousand dollars ($60,000.00) to be used to assess 
brownfield sites in its geographic area. 

5.3. Notwithstanding Section 5.2 or anything else herein to the contrary, the County may 
reallocate, at its sole discretion, the unused grant funds allocated to Municipality to any other 
member( s) of the Consortium. Furthermore, Municipality may receive grant funds in excess 
of the amount allocated in Section 5.2, at the sole discretion of County, if grant funds are 
reallocated to Municipality from other members of the Consortium. 

6. DURATION OF THE AGREEMENT. 

6.1. The Agreement and any amendments hereto shall be effective when executed by both Parties, 
with resolutions passed by the governing bodies of each Party and when the Agreement is 
filed according to MCL 124.510. 

6.2. Unless terminated pursuant to Section 8 of this Agreement, this Agreement shall end ninety 
(90) days after the date the Grant period ends (including any extensions to the original Grant 
period). 

7. ASSURANCES/LIABILITY. 

7.1. Each Party shall comply with all federal, state, and local ordinances, regulations, 
administrative rules, laws, and requirements applicable to its activities performed under this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the Cooperative Agreement and the 2020 Guidelines 
for Brownfield Assessment Grants. 

7.2. Each Party shall be responsible for any Claims made against that Party by a third party, and 
for the acts of its employees or agents, arising under or related to this Agreement. 

7.3. In any Claims that may arise under or relate to this agreement, each Party shall seek its own 
legal representation and bear the costs associated with such representation, including any 
attorney fees. 

7.4. A Party who is non-compliant with this Agreement, the Cooperative Agreement, the 2020 
Guidelines for Brownfield Assessment Grants or any applicable federal, state, and local 
ordinances, regulations, administrative rules or laws assumes sole risk and liability for its 
non-compliance including but not limited to liability for any penalties imposed by the EPA or 
other governmental entity or any other fines, fees or costs associated with its non
compliance. 

7.5. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, neither Party shall have any right under any 
legal principle to be indemnified by the other Party or any of its employees or agents in 
connection with any Claim. · 

Page4 

2020 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT- FINAL 



7.6. The Parties have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and 
complete this Agreement. TI1e persons signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party have 
legal authority to sign this Agreement and bind the Parties to the tem1s and conditions 
contained herein. 

8. TERMINATION OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT. Either Party may terminate and/or 
cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) Days notice to the other Party. The effective date of 
termination and/or cancellation shall be clearly stated in the notice if this Agreement is terminated 
and/or cancelled. Termination of this Agreement does not release any Party from any obligations 
that Party has pursuant to the 2020 Guidelines for Brownfield Assessment Grants, the Cooperative 
Agreement or as provided by Jaw. If the Municipality terminates this Agreement, the grant funds , 

_____ , __ ., hieh-were-aHelcated-to-the-Munieipality-,-but-not--yet-used-shaH-be-reaHoeated-to-other-members-ocF-f---~r,·,_.•. 
the Consortium at the County's discretion. r-

9. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Except as provided for the benefit of the Parties, this 
Agreement does not and is not intended to create any obligation, duty, promise, contractual 1ight or 
benefit, right to indemnification, right to subrogation, and/or any other 1ight, in favor of any other 
person or entity. 

10. DISCRIMINATION. The Paiiies shall not discriminate against their employees, agents, applicants 
for employment, or another persons or entities with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, and 
privileges of employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment in violation of 
any federal, state or local lav,,. · 

11. PERMITS AND LICENSES. Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining, 
throughout the term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, ce1iificates, and governmental 
authorizations necessary to carry out its obligations and duties pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS. This Agreement does not, and is not intended to waive, impair, 
divest, delegate, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other legal right, privilege, 
power, obligation, duty, or immunity of the Parties. 

13. DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACT/ASSIGNMENT. Neither Party shall delegate, subcontract, 
and/or assign any obligations or 1ights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 
other Party. -

14. NO IMPLIED WAIVER. Absent a written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a Party to pursue or 
enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of those rights with 
regard to any existing or subsequent breach of this Agreement. No waiver of any term, condition, or 
provision of this Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances, shall be 
deemed or construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement. 
No waiver by either Party shall subsequently affect its right to require strict performance of this 
Agreement. 

15. SEVERABILITY. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term, or condition, of this Agreement 
to be illegal or invalid, then the term, or condition, shall be deemed severed from this Agreement. 
All other terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force. 

Page 5 

2020 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT - FINAL 

i 
1_· 



16. CAPTIONS. The section and subsection numbers, captions, and any index to such sections and 
subsections contained in this Agreement are intended for the convenience of the reader and are not 
intended to have any substantive meaning. The numbers, captions, and indexes shall not be 
interpreted or be considered as part of this Agreement. Any use of the singular or plural number, 
any reference to the male, female, or neutral genders, and any possessive or nonpossessive use in 
this Agreement shall be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or possession as the context 
requires. 

17. NOTICES. Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally 
delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first class U.S. mail postage prepaid, 
ahd addressed to the person listed below. Notice will be deemed given on the date when one of the_ 

~~~~-·foHowing--first~oceur-:---(--l}ihe-date--o-f-aetual--reeeipt;---(z)·the-nex-t----busi-ness-day--when---notice-is----senl'------~~~
express delivery service or personal delivery; or (3) three days after mailing first class or ce1tified 
U.S. mail. 

17.1. If Notice is sent to the County, it shall be addressed and sent to: Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners Chairperson, 1200 North Telegraph, Pontiac, Michigan 48341, with a copy 
to Oakland County Economic Development and Community Affairs, Attention: 
Environmental Program Coordinator, 2100 Pontiac Lake Road, Waterford, Michigan , 
48328. 

17.2. If Notice is sent to the Municipality, it shall be addressed to: Anthony Chubb, City Attorney, 
47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48432, with a copy sent to City of Pontiac 
Economic Development Department and Procurement Department at the same address. 

17.3. Either Party may change the address and/or individual to which Notice is sent by notifying 
the other Party in writing of the change. 

18. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of 
the State of Michigan. 

19. AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS. Any modifications, amendments, 
rescissions, waivers, or releases to this Agreement must be in writing and executed by both Parties. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement represents the entire agreement and understanding 
between the Parties. This Agreement supersedes all other oral or written agreements between the 
Parties. The language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, 
and not construed strictly for or against any Party. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, David T. Woodward, Chairperson, Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners, hereby acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the Oakland 
County Board of Commissioners, a certified copy of which is attached, to execute this Agreement on 
behalf of the Oakland County, and hereby accepts and binds the Oakland County to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

EXECUTED: ____________ _ DATE: ------
Chairperson 

Page 6 

2020 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT~ FINAL 



WITNESSED: 

Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

---------------
Clerk/Register of Deeds 
County of Oakland 

Page 7 

DATE: -----~ 

; 
. . . ! 

2020 OAKLAND COUNTY BROWNFIELD CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT - FINAL 



Project Title 

37 Turk 

USEPA Grant Funds - Oakland County Brownfield Consortium 

2016- 2020 

CVT USEPA $ Development Overall Investment* 

Pontiac $2,250 Light Manufacturing/R& $1,100,000 

31 N. Saginaw ___ _ _ _l:()ntiac _ _ _ ___ $_2_,4_0_0--+-O_ff_ic_e_/_c_o_ffe_e_s_h_o_p_--+-------------l 
45671 Woodward Pontiac $2,600 Office I coffee shop $2,000,000.00 

-- --

640 W. Huron Pontiac $2,250 Community Center 

640 W. Huron Pontiac $13,550 
-------

23 N. Saginaw Pontiac $2,300 Mixed Use 
---,-----------t----------------. 

111 Oneida Pontiac $2,200 Residential $5,600,000.00 
1---------+-----1---------t--------1----------

2040 CenterPoint Pontiac $8,700 Office $4,000,000.00 
-- -------- ---------- ---•-------+----------+----------------< 

1059 Featherstone Pontiac $2,200 Pontiac Farm $4,300,000.00 l----------+-----1---------t-------·--------- --- - ---- ---- ·---------------< 

Vanguard Pontiac $4,250 FED EX $22,500,000.00 

1200 Auburn Pontiac $8,875 Peninsula Plastics $8,000,000.00 
---1------1---------- ------------+---------------. 

94 Dwight Pontiac $2,400 Residential $4,450,000.00 
f----------------

100 N. Saginaw Pontiac $1,500 Incubator $500,000.00 
------+---->-------- -----------+-------------1 

28 N. Saginaw Pontiac $24, 145 Mixed Use $20,000,000.00 

46 N. Saginaw Pontiac $2,300 Mixed Use $3,000,000.00 
1----------+-----f-----

50 Wayne Pontiac $6,500 Mixed Use $4,600,000.00 
---------+-----+------+---------+-------------------

5111 Woodward Pontiac $3,000 Office $25,000,000.00 
- - - - - ---- ---- - -- ----------+---------------< 

28 N. Saginaw Pontiac $4,450 
___ f------____ 1---------+-------+---------- --- -- -

Pontiac 4501 Woodward $11,475 Car Service $500,000.00 
-- ------

Pontiac Vanguard $4,250 FED EX $22,500,000.00 
-- - -------------

Pontiac 1200 Auburn $8,875 Peninsula Plastics $8,000,000.00 
------- --- -

Pontiac 94 Dwight $2,400 Residential $4,450,000.00 
1----------+-----1-----------t------ --------

Pontiac 100 N. Saginaw $1,500 Incubator $500,000.00 
~-- ----------------- --------1----------,1--------------,f------------------l 

Pontiac 28 N. Saginaw $24,145 Mixed Use $20,000,000.00 
l-------------+-----1-----------t------- - -----

~~~~ina_w__ __ _ ___ $_2_,3_o_o_,_M_ix_e_d_U_s_e ____ ---+-____ $_3_,o_o_o,_o_oo_._o__,o Pontiac 
-- - -

50 Wayne $6,500 Mixed Use $4,600,000.00 ,___f------_____ _,__ ___ ,__ ___ ___, __________ -- ----- ------- -- -------Pontiac 

5111 Woodward Pontiac $3,000 Office $25,000,000.00 
------- ~----------- ------ ---------------1-------------t-------------J 

28 N. Saginaw Pontiac $4,450 

4501 Woodward Pontiac $11,475 Car Service $500,000.00 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Pontiac City Council 

Deidre Waterman, Mayor, at the request of 
Dan Ringo, Interim Director of DPW 

September 2, 2020 

Great Lakes Power & Light Contract Extension 

In 2017, the City of Pontiac advertised for "Street Light Maintenance" and awarded a 
contract to Great Lakes P&L. This contract was a one-year contract with options for years 
two and three. In the three years working with Great Lakes P&L, they have been a very 
responsive company to work with. We feel that their work product and ability to respond to 
outages and repairs is the best we have seen since contracting out the street light 
maintenance. Additionally, their pricing is also some of the lowest in the area for parts and 
labor, saving the City money on costly repairs. 

Great Lakes P&L has been a trusted contractor for the 3 years of this contract and has done 
exemplary work repairing our public lighting system. Their knowledge of the City's public 
lighting system is unmatched and takes time and effort to figure out and understand. 

At this time, the original Great Lakes P&L contract has expired. The Department of Public 
Works is still in need of assistance for "Street Light Maintenance" until such time as we can 
prepare a new Request for Proposal and take bids on the work. 

We request to extend the current contract with Great Lakes P&L who has agreed to maintain 
current pricing. We are requesting to extend this for a period of 6 Months to allow for a new 
RFP to be drafted, advertised, bids to be reviewed and a new contract to be brought to City 
Council. 

Funding for this contract is in the Major Street Fund. 

Based upon the above and attached information, it is the recommendation of the Department of 
Public Works to extend the contract with Great Lakes P&L for 6 Months. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

The City of Pontiac has mutually agreed with Great Lakes P&L to extend 
the contract for 6 Months at current rates; 

Great Lakes P&L has done exemplary work over the 3 years of their 
contract; 

The Department of Public Works is still in need of assistance for "Street 
Light Maintenance"; 



BE IT RESOLVED, 

AHC 

The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to extend the contract 
with Great Lakes P&L until January 1, 2021. 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 
DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council Members 

Irwin Williams, CPA, Interim Finance Director 

Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman, Jane Bais-DiSessa 
August18,2020 

Resolution to approve a budget amendment for fiscal year 202012021 to increase 
budgeted revenues and appropriations related to Census grants 

The City has received two grants for the U.S. Census from the Michigan Municipal League ($25,000) 
and the Community Foundation of Southeast Michigan ($65,000). The grants are to be used for 
census related expenditures. The expenditures and grant revenue will help to ensure the citizens of 
Pontiac are counted in the 2020 census, and the City receives the state and federal funding it is 
entitled to based on population. 

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the 2020-2021 budget on June 30, 2020 and; 

Whereas, the City has received two grants from the Michigan Municipal League and 
Community Foundation of Southeast Michigan, and; 

Whereas, the Mayor is proposing to the City Council to increase the budgeted revenue for 
the current fiscal year 2020-2021 in the amount of $90,000 for grant income, and increase the 
appropriations in the amount of $90,000, representing reimbursed grant expenditures. 

Whereas, the increased appropriations will not cause the fund balance in the General Fund 
to go below the policy mandated thresholds and; 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council hereby authorizes the Interim City 
Clerk to publish a notice in a newspaper of general circulation at least one week before 
consideration of the proposed budget amendment to increase budgeted revenues in the amount of 
$90,000 to the General Fund in account 101-000-532.000-Grant Income, and appropriations in 
the amount of $90,000 to the following General Fund account: 

101-690-818.013 Census Expenditures $ 90,000 

1 of2 


	Electronically Meeting Notice 9-15-20
	20200911162604971
	20200911162634846
	20200911162657260
	20200911162725040
	20200911162814697
	20200911162940978
	20200911163018360
	20200911163129327
	20200911163219758



